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Five Year Financial Summary

EFHBHEHME

Consolidated Income Statement mealkaER

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
ZEENFE ZTERF ZTTRE ZTTLF —ZE)NF
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTAR®E FTITARE FTRAR®E FTTAR®E FTRARH®

Continuing operations:  IFELEEK -

Turnover X 941,577 1,048,532 944,622 1,253,230 667,193
Profit before taxation B 5 A 60,160 4,921 16,072 8,383 26,307
Income tax Frig®i (5,019) (878) (2,426) (3,106) (15,759)
Profit for the year from BECEET

continuing operations ZF R F 55,141 4,043 13,646 5,277 10,548

Discontinuing operations: B #% 1F 27 :
Profit/(Loss) for the year BERIFER Y

from discontinued FREF,
operations (B18) - (1,770) (2,203) 11,634 =
Profit for the year F WA 55,141 2,273 11,443 16,911 10,548
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity shareholders ZN/NSIE £
of the Company i ER 41,229 308 12,042 13,802 7,222
Minority interests DYRRER 13,912 1,965 (599) 3,109 3,326

55,141 2,273 11,443 16,911 10,548




Five Year Financial Summary

EFFHBEHRE

Consolidated Balance Sheet mEEBEEARBR
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

—ERNF —ETRF —ZEERF —TELF =T )N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000  RMB’000
FrARE FARE FTARE FTITARE FTTARK

Non-current assets ERBEE 88,045 217,475 221,900 317,668 358,691
Current assets MENE E 453,854 655,948 690,068 695,539 305,252
Current liabilities nEaE (260,998) (543,844) (521,344) (640,248)  (192,675)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE - (48,486) (28,832) - (112,647)
280,901 281,093 361,792 372,959 358,621
Issued capital BERITRA 42,480 42,480 50,480 59,460 59,460 "
Reserves & 174,666 168,744 203,866 245,143 237,376 i
Proposed final dividend FRREAIRE 12,000 4,000 9,600 11,520 = o
Minority interests LYRRER 51,755 65,869 97,846 56,836 61,785 ::
=
280,901 281,093 361,792 372,959 358,621 >
al
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Mayer Holdings Limited

Chairman’s Statement

ETR®BE

Dear fellow shareholders,

| am pleased to announce the audited results of Mayer Holdings Limited
("Mayer” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008 (the “Year").

Highlights for the year ended 31 December 2008:

o Group Revenues were RMB667,193,000

o Profit from operations was RMB45,695,000

e Profit attributable to shareholders was RMB7,222,000
e Earnings per share was RMB1.25 cents

Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group reported
consolidated turnover of RMB667,193,000, representing a decrease of
47.0% over last year. Gross profit margin was 9.6% compared to last
year's 5.0%. Net profit attributable to shareholders was RMB7,222,000,
compared with last year’s RMB13,802,000. Earnings per share for the
Year from continuing operations and discontinued operation were
RMB1.25 cents and RMBNIl cents versus the last year's RMB0.83 cents
and RMB1.86 cents, respectively.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend in
respect of 2008 (2007: RMB2 cents per share).

Business Review

The national economy of the PRC is basically achieving a balance after
the PRC government implemented those macro control measures. The
increase in market demand and overall prices of steel products has
been moderately raised in the first half of 2008. On the other hand,
raw materials, energy costs, and labour costs have all been increased
to different extents. However, the situations changed as the fear of
an imminent global recession after the U.S. financial market went
into a tailspin during the second half of 2008. Affected by market
demand, the international market prices of iron ores, petroleum and
raw materials rose initially but dropped later. This led to a continuous
drop in prices of steel products; in particular, prices of steel products
experienced a severe drop after October. As a result, the Group’s
earnings in the second half of 2008 decreased accordingly.

BRIRIR

ARARAEMEEZERBR AR ([X5]3K
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HE_ZZT )/ \E+_A=+—HUEEEZ%
IESR BT

o  RE&EEZINZE1E667,193,0007T AR
o AREEFIEEA45,695,000T AR

o REEAEFIET, 222,000 AREE

e BREFMABI25DARE

EEMEE
AEERBZE_ZZENF+=-A=1+—8
IEFE 2 ire &5 7i%667,193 OOOEAE
B EERAA47.0% o EFEE9.6%
EF R A5.0% ° Hiﬁma,,ﬁ%u%zzzz,ooo
TTARE » X4 513,802,000t AR o &
FEBBKEEBRERIEEB 2 SRET
DRE1.25D ARERES AR + KFA|
DR A0.83D) ARKER1.860 AR ©
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group still focused on developing the emerging markets. In the
second half of 2008, based on the actual situation, the Company
increased the supply of its products and strengthened its management,
so as to tackle the changes in operating environment. In anticipation
of a tough economic environment, the Chinese government took
pre-emptive measures and aimed to kept steady market growth, the
Mainland is still represent a huge market with plentiful opportunities.
We also seek opportunities on a globally prospective and ensure our
product portfolio will suit market demands.

The Group's steel business segment has recorded a segment profit
of RMB31,013,000 for the Year. During the Year, the Group sold
approximately 119,496 tonnes of steel products, representing 22.9%
decreased from approximately 155,000 tonnes for the last year. The
average selling price of the Group’s steel products during the Year
increased by approximately 3.0% compared with that the last year.

The Group's property investment business segment has contributed
RMB3,977,000 segment revenue for the Year. As at the balance
sheet date, the property revaluation surplus of RMB36,655,000 was
accounted for in the profit and loss account. The Group believed
that this major acquisition is in line with the Group'’s current business
diversification strategy to invest in favorable investments and to
broaden the income base of the Group.

Outlook

Looking ahead in 2009, the imbalance between demand and supply in
the steel and metal sector will continue and the prices of steel and metal
products will still remain at a moderately fast level. In a short run, the
global economy was weaken by the concerns of weak global demand.
With the PRC’s and Vietnam's economy maintain a rapid growth rate,
still there will be a strong domestic demand for our products.

Along with the global economy is likely to be affected by the fallout
from the U.S. subprime predicament and the weaken U.S. dollar
against other currencies. We expect that the rise in operating costs,
oil prices and interest rate drops will continue, and the increasingly
intense market competition will present more challenges to the Group’s
operation.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETR®BE

As the general expectation, Taiwan's economic growth will surge in
the next few years following its governmental and economic reforms,
plentiful opportunities will appear while Taiwan continued to make
progress in improving its ties with China. The Group is determined to
capitalize these opportunities arising from the growth of the Taiwan,
together with the growth in the PRC and other countries. The Group
will continue to seek new investment opportunities in stakes in potential
growth and balanced return.

The Group’s management is confident that the Group will fully
capitalize its extensive experience in cost management and achieve
greater cost effectiveness, strengthen high value-added products’
innovation and achieve customer satisfaction excellence. The Group is
welcome to every investment opportunities which are beneficial to our
long term development, with an aim to generate the best return from
investments and generate the best returns to our investors.

Appreciation

The Company would like to express its sincere gratitude to the
shareholders, banks, business partners, and people from various social
communities, as well as all staff of the Group for their long-time
support.

By Order of the Board

Hsiao Ming-chih
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 April 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group reported
consolidated turnover of RMB667,193,000, representing decrease of
47.0% over last year. Gross profit margin was 9.6% compared to last
year's 5.0%. Net profit attributable to shareholders was RMB7,222,000,
compared with last year’s RMB13,802,000. Earnings per share from
continuing operations and discontinued operation for the Year were
RMB1.25 and RMBNIl cents versus the last year's RMB0.83 cents and
RMB1.86 cents, respectively.

Major Business Activities

Investment in CID

On 6 June 2008, the Company invested USD3 million to subscribe
for the shares of Capital Investment Development Limited (“CID")
and aimed to enhance the Group’s returns. CID is principally
engaged in long and short term investment projects, equities
investment and asset management in Hong Kong, Taiwan and
other Asian countries.

Very Substantial Acquisition of a Taiwan Property Group

On 6 October 2008, the Company entered into an S&P Agreement
with the vendors to which the Company was conditionally agreed
to purchase the shares, representing approximately 88.59% of
the entire issued share capital of Durban Group at an aggregate
consideration of NTD1,397 million. The directors consider that
the Acquisition is in line with the Group’s current business
diversification strategy and with quickly enhance the assets base of
the Group.

However, the Asian countries, including Taiwan suffered a heavy
sell-off after the U.S. financial market went into tailspin following
the collapse of some financial institutions. And the impact of credit
freeze triggered by this was felt through the financial system.

Given that the sudden crash of the financial system, the Board
has decided to terminate the acquisition due to certain conditions
precedent of the agreement had not been fulfilled or waived
on 31 December 2008, being the long stop date for fulfillment
of the conditions precedent of the agreement. By taking into
consideration of the global economic downturn and in the interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, the directors
decided not to extend the long stop date. Accordingly, the S&P
Agreements became null and void ab initio and the Company’s
obligations to purchase the shares in Durban Group lapsed.
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EEESNWHE DN

Production and Sales

The revenue from indirect export sales of steel products in the PRC
and Vietnam during the Year was approximately RMB517,792,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 41.0% compared with
approximately RMB878,174,000 for the last year. The market for
indirect export sales in the PRC continued to be the core market for the
Group’s steel segment.

The revenue from domestic sales of steel products in the PRC and
Vietnam during the Year was approximately RMB120,406,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 60.5% compared with
approximately RMB304,827,000 for the last year.

The revenue from direct export sales of steel products outside the PRC
and Vietnam during the Year was approximately RMB14,022,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 22.0% while it was
approximately RMB 17,976,000 for the last year.

Rental income and consultancy fee income from aircrafts leasing
during the Year was approximately RMB8,171,000 and RMB437,000
respectively compared with approximately RMB7,195,000 and
RMB469,000 respectively for the last year and which represented a
stable stream of income for the Group.

Rental income from property investment was approximately
RMB3,977,000 as the Acquisition of Property were completed on
February 2008 during the Year.

The investment property of the Group carried at fair value were
revalued as at 31 December 2008 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to recent market transactions in comparable
properties and to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm
of surveyors, i NEVEGEBEIEAT, being a member of the
Republic of China Association of Real Estate Appraisers who have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant location and category of property
being valued. A valuation gain on investment property approximately
RMB36,655,000 was recorded as at 31 December 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB63,855,000 for
the Year, with a gross profit margin of approximately 9.6%, compared
with the gross profit of approximately RMB63,002,000 and a gross
profit margin of approximately 5.0% for the last year.

This was mainly attributable to the growth rate of the purchasing costs
of raw materials, which was significantly lower than that of the selling
prices of our products for the first 10 months of 2008.

Operating Expenses

The total operating expenses of the Group for the Year were
approximately RMB71,836,000, of which approximately RMB9, 155,000
in distribution costs, RMB44,408,000 in administrative expenses
and RMB18,273,000 in other operating expenses, accounting for
approximately 1.4%, 6.7%, and 2.7% of turnover respectively while
the amounts for the last year were approximately RMB13,681,000,
RMB34,696,000, and RMB2,899,000 respectively, accounting for

approximately 1.1%, 2.8%, and 0.2% respectively.

Finance Costs

During the Year, the Group incurred RMB 19,388,000 in finance costs,
compared with approximately RMB19,233,000 for the last year. The
Group relied on bank borrowings to finance its trading activities and
property’s mortgage, the increase in finance costs paid during the Year
was mainly due to the increase in interest rates in paid to the bank for
the Group’s investment property in Taiwan.

Financial Resources and Treasury Policies

The Group continues to adhere to prudent treasury policies. The Group
continued to insure against major receivables in order to lower the
risks of credit sales and to ensure that funds would be recovered on a
timely basis, hence fulfilling the requirements for debt repayments and
working capital commitments.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank deposits and cash
balances (including pledged bank deposits) of approximately
RMB84,951,000, of which bank deposits of approximately
RMB5,578,000 were pledged to secure financing facilities granted to
the Group.
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The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB112,577,000
as at 31 December 2008 as compared with RMB55,513,000 as at 31
December 2007. The current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) changed to approximately 1.58 as of 31 December 2008 from
1.09 as at 31 December 2007.

The Group had a total of approximately RMB788,794,000 financing
facilities from banks were available as at 31 December 2008, of which
approximately RMB244,141,000, mainly denominated in Renminbi, US
dollars, HK dollars and new Taiwan dollars with floating interest rates,
had been drawn down to finance the Group’s working capital purposes,
capital expenditures and for other acquisition opportunities.

The gearing ratio (net debt divided by total capital) as at 31 December
2008 was approximately 34.9% while it was 38.4% as of 31 December
2007. Current portion of borrowings accounted for approximately
21.0% and 30.7% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and 31 December 2007, respectively.

Cash Flow

For the Year, the Group generated net cash inflow of RMB269,520,000
from its operating activities, as compared to net cash outflow of
approximately RMB 15,285,000 for the last year. The increase in net cash
inflow from operating activities was primarily due to the decrease in the
inventories and trade and other receivables during the Year.

Net cash outflow of approximately RMB167,920,000 was from
investing activities for the Year, mainly resulted from the Group’s
capital expenditures and the acquisition of property in Taiwan and
investment in other financial assets. Net cash outflow of approximately
RMB99,829,000 was from financing activities, mainly resulted from the
Group's repayment of bank borrowings and bank interest payment.

Banks deposits and cash balances (including pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB5,578,000) as at 31 December 2008 amounted to
approximately RMB84,951,000, mainly denominated in Renminbi, US
dollars, HK dollars and new Taiwan dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Exposures

As most of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi, US dollars, HK dollars and new Taiwan dollars and those
currencies remained relatively stable during the Year, the Group was not
exposed to any significant exchange risk (see note 30 to the financial
statements). In general, it is the Group’s policy for each operating entity
to borrow in local currencies, where necessary, to minimize currency
risk.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2008, building and factory premises, construction
in progress, plant and machinery, investment property and prepaid
lease payments of the Group with net book value or carrying amount
of approximately RMB24,376,000, RMB7,656,000, RMB34,816,000,
RMB153,976,000 and RMB8,194,000 respectively and bank deposits
of approximately RMB5,578,000 were pledged to banks for securing
banking and other financing facilities granted to the Group. These
financing facilities had been utilised to the extent of approximately
RMB222,605,000 at the balance sheet.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2008, the Company has given corporate guarantees in
favour of certain banks to secure banking facilities of RMB244,356,000
(2007: RMB131,777,000) granted to Guangzhou Mayer, a subsidiary.
Out of these banking facilities, RMB172,874,000 was utilised by
Guangzhou Mayer as at 31 December 2008 (2007: RMB60,736,000).

The maximum liability of the Company under the guarantee
issued represents the amount drawn down by the subsidiary of
RMB172,874,000 (2007: RMB60,736,000). No recognition was made
because the fair value of the guarantee was insignificant and that
the directors did not consider it probable that a claim would be made
against the Company under the guarantee.

Apart from the above, the Company and the Group have no other
material contingent liabilities at both balance sheet dates.
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Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had total of 350 employees. Total
staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2008 were approximately
RMB25,186,000, including retirement benefits cost of approximately
RMB1,854,000. Remuneration packages of the Group are maintained
at a competitive level to attract, retain and motive employees and are
reviewed on a periodic basis.

The Group always maintains good relation with its employees and is
committed to employee training and development on a regular basis to
maintain the quality of our products.

In addition, the Company has a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants. No option has
been granted under the scheme since its adoption.

BA - BIIRER

R-ZEZENF+_A=+—H KAEH
#B30EEE - REE_STNF+=
A=+ —BLEFEZBEINALN A
25,186,0007C ARHE + BIERIRIEFIK 44T
1,854,000 A R# - REB 2 H BB %
REBBF N2 KFEARS| - %8 KHEE
8 - W F RELRKRE -

AEE-MEEEAFRIEE  LEHH
BERHBINER BUESERER-

BEAN  ARBREBIIETE > AAERS
B SR UURUR N 2R o BERADAZK - BLEAR
IRExRT B D BB A AR



Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih, aged 49, is redesignated as an executive director
and the chairman of the Company on 19 December 2008. Mr. Hsiao
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce from the Accounting Faculty
of Tung Hai University. Mr. Hsiao is currently the general manager
of Taiwan Mayer, the Chairman of Fullchamp Technologies Co., Ltd.
("Fullchamp”) and a director of Tze Shin International Company
Limited.

Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing, aged 51, is an executive director and is responsible
for the overall corporate strategy and planning of the Group. He holds
a Bachelor degree in Corporate Management from Tamkang University.
He is currently the general manager of Durban Development Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Lo Haw, aged 46, is an executive director of the Company
responsible for the product development of the Group. He holds a
Master of Business Administration degree in 1992 from Bloomsbury
University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Lo has over 17 years of experience in
the steel pipe and sheet industry. Prior to his appointment as director
of Guangzhou Mayer Corp., Limited (“Guangzhou Mayer”) on 23
November 1995, Mr. Lo had worked as vice-chairman of Yungfa Steel
Corp., Limited. He is currently a director of a number of companies,
namely, Taiwan Mayer and Fukang Investments Holdings Company
Limited. Mr. Lo was awarded by the Guangzhou Municipal Government
as “Honorary Citizen”.

Dr. Lin Meng-chang, aged 39, graduated with a Ph.D. degree in
corporate management from the Shanghai University of Finance &
Economics in 2003 and a MBA degree from the George Washington
University in 1996. Prior to his appointment as director of the Company,
Dr. Lin has over 11 years of experience in securities and investment
banking industry. He is also a director of Waterland Securities Co.,
Ltd. and had worked as the general manager of Waterland Securities
Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.

EEREE

HITES
WKL 495 R-FTT/\F+-A
THABBEARARARTESREF S
o BAUARERTGABEHR  EEH
¥2+20 - ARRTAEETALE &
REBRERBAERAD (ER)EFER
REERRBRHERARNES -

BEBELE 515 ARBWTESEREEA
BEARBEZOERE LIRS - MELEX
PRI RBEREER - BELRKIEET
BLEABERNHARAFBLE -

BEKE 4658 ARAYITES  AEARN
SEEMMABEIE BEXER-NNLZFR
1§ M Bloomsbury University T f& & HE AR 1- £
7 - BER BB 7F S MR TRAERR - I
—NMNAF+—AZ+=BRZEEMNED
B BERAG ([EMER]DEE A &L
FBEKEME T EROBRARIRIER -
BEEREREEERERKRERNERR
BAIERRICES  GREMTBAREIE
MHREMR]E -

MEBEEL  39m R_EZ=FHIF LF
MEREMEERETSM RN —NNRE
EXf8George Washington University T 7 & F2
ET26 REZERRRABIEEZA - #K
BT AFBBIFIERFRRERITER 7
BrHERRERGAER (R RAZES
KEBRBEIZEFFRERRB (R) AaERE
FEIE o

—_
(9)]

[ERNAR = R A

% £ 800¢



Annual Report 2008

Mayer Holdings Limited

Biographical Details of Directors

EEREE

Mr. Lu Wen-yi, aged 58, graduated and received from the National
Chung Hsing University a Bachelor degree in Laws in 1973. Prior to his
appointment as director of the Company, Mr. Lu has over 23 years of
experience in real estate development and over 7 years of experience in
biotechnology industry. He is currently a CEO of High Sierra Biotech LLC.
and the general manager of M ZHEHEGR A F

Mr. Cheng Dar-terng, aged 57, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master degree in Business
Management from University of Dallas in the United States. He was
appointed as a director of Guangzhou Mayer on 23 November 1995. He
is currently a director of Taiwan Mayer.

Mr. Chiang Jen-chin, aged 42, is an executive director of the Company
responsible for financial activities of the Group. He has over 18 years of
experience in the steel pipe and sheet industry. Mr. Chiang is currently
the manager to the general manager office of Taiwan Mayer.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Chun-fa, aged 52, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Huang has held senior positions in various listed
companies in Taiwan and is currently the chairman of Durban
Development Company Limited, the chairman of Tze Shin International
Company Limited and the chairman of Taiwan Mayer.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Sheng-bin, aged 44, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Lin holds a Master degree in Finance from National
Chung-Cheng University. He has worked as the section staff member,
commissioner, auditor and the supervisor of the Regulatory Commission
for Securities and Futures, under the Finance Ministry of Taiwan and
the supervisor of First Taiwan Securities Inc. He is currently the executive
vice president of Sinopac Securities Corp. and directors of Giga Trend
International Venture Investment Corp. and Gigawin International
Venture Investment Corp.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang, aged 48, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Huang obtained a Master degree in
Accountancy from National Chengchi University. He has over 15 years
of experience in the accounting field. He had worked as the assistant
manager in the audit services department of KPMG in Taiwan.

Mr. Alvin Chiu, aged 48, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Chiu graduated from the University of Southern
California in 1983 majoring in Economics. He has extensive commercial
and retail banking experience in the U.S. He had worked as the vice
president and branch manager of First Central Bank in Los Angeles,
California for eight years. Mr. Chiu is now the managing director of
Pacific Links Group Limited and Pacific Connections Group Limited. He
has experience in China trades, importation and wholesale industries.
He is also involved in the contract manufacturing, electronics and
original equipment manufacturing (“OEM") assembly business in
Greater China.
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and Company Secretary
SREEABRAAM

Senior Management

Mr. Shen Heng-chiang, aged 54 is the general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for the Group’s sales and marketing
activities. Mr. Shen graduated from the faculty of industrial
management in Tam Shui Institute of Business Administration College
in 1976. Mr. Shen has over 25 years of experience in the steel industry.
Prior to his appointment as the general manager of Guangzhou Mayer
on 23 November 1995, Mr. Shen had worked as general manager of
Yungfa Steel Corp., Limited. He is currently a committee member of the
Taiwan Investment Enterprise Association in Guangzhou and a senior
management staff of Taiwan Mayer.

Mr. Shen Chin-an, aged 47, is the deputy general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for sales activities. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Japanese language from SooChow University. Mr. Shen
joined the Group on 12 January 1999. Having ample experience in steel
industry, Mr. Shen had worked for Ta Fu Steel Industrial Co., Limited and
Shang Fu Steel Industrial Co., Limited.

Mr. Huang Yu-chi, aged 40, is the deputy general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for financial management in Guangzhou
Mayer. He is also the secretary to board of directors of Guangzhou
Mayer. He is now a student seating for doctoral degree in Jinan
University and holds a bachelor degree in Industrial Engineering from
Tung Hai University. Prior to joining the Group on 5 September 1996, he
had worked as a senior officer of Taiwan Mayer.

Ms. Su Li-jung, aged 49, is the administration manager of Guangzhou
Mayer responsible for procurement activities. Ms. Su graduated from
the Faculty of Dance and Music of Chinese Culture University majoring
in dancing. Prior to joining the Group on 4 March 2003, she had worked
as the assistant manager of Nahuaou Co., Limited and manager of
Hong Kong International Insurance Agent.
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Biographical Details of Senior Management
and Company Secretary
SREEABRAGIMUEER

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Lai Yin Tommy, aged 37, is also the financial controller
and qualified accountant of the Group and a member of the senior
management of the Company. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has over
15 years of experience in audit and accounting field. Prior to joining
the Company, he held the posts of financial controller and company
secretary of a listed company in Hong Kong.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of Mayer Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2008.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Results

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 44 to 48.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years is set out on pages 4 to 5.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

Reserves

Details of movements of the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2008 amounted
to RMB120,529,000 (2007: RMB152,521,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest and the five largest customers accounted for 16% and
31% of the Group's total turnover for the Year, respectively. The largest
and the five largest suppliers accounted for 65.2% and 80.2% of the
Group's purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme was adopted on 24 May 2004 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentive and
to recognize the contribution of the eligible participants to the growth
of the Group and will expire on 24 May 2014. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible full time employees,
including any executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors, and consultants or advisers of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Up to 31 December 2008, no options have been granted since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The total number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other option schemes is not permitted to exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant to the 10
years of the date of grant. No minimum period for which an option
must be held is required. The exercise price, which is determined by the
Board, is the highest of: (i) the closing price per share on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price per share for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed shares.
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Report of the Directors

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih (redesignated on 9/12/2008)
Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing

Mr. Lo Haw

Mr. Cheng Dar-terng

Mr. Chiang Jen-chin

Dr. Lin Meng-chang (resigned on 11/2/2009)

Mr. Lu Wen-yi

Non-executive director

Mr. Huang Chun-fa

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang
Mr. Lin Sheng-bin
Mr. Alvin Chiu

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
each of Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing, Mr. Lu Wen-yi and Mr. Huang Chun-fa will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 15 to 17.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing from
their respective dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter from
year to year until and unless terminated by either party by giving to the
other party not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for
an initial term of one year commencing from their respective dates of
appointment and shall continue thereafter from year to year until and
unless terminated by either party by giving to the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service agreement with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence in 2008 pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and as at the date of this report, the
Company still considers the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
Saved as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Report of the Directors

Interests and Short Positions of the Directors and
Chief Executives of the Company

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they have taken, or deemed to have taken under such
provisions), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register required to be kept therein, or which were
required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in the share capital of Mayer Steel Pipe
Corporation (“Taiwan Mayer”)
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Approximate

Number of ordinary shares in Taiwan Mayer % of

aBXnEERYA

shareholding

Name of director Personal Family Corporate Other Total RN
EEHE BA i3 NHE Hit &5t Bo
Mr. Lo Haw 254,108 1,099 12,077,676 - 12,332,883 6.35%
mERE

Mr. Cheng Dar-terng - 360,000 2,595,000 - 2,955,000 1.52%
Mr. Chiang Jen-chin 6,003 - - - 6,003 0.00%
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Interests and Short Positions of the Directors and
Chief Executives of the Company (Continued)

Long positions in the share capital of Guangzhou Mayer Corp.,
Ltd. ("Guangzhou Mayer")

Number of ordinary shares in Guangzhou Mayer

KRBAEEREFETHRAEZE
mRRAE (&)

REMEEROGERABD ((EMED]D K
KziR

Approximate
% of total

BEMEDEBEREE shareholding

Approximate

Name of director Personal Family Corporate Other #EFREHD

EEHE EA i3 NF Hity Bok

Mr. Lo Haw - - 12,800,000 - 6.40%
EREE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates, had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
have taken, or deemed to have taken under such provisions), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register required to be kept therein, or which were required pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies in the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, and none of the directors or chief executives, or their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
rights at any time during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders

So far as the directors of the Company are aware, the person/entity (not
being a director or a chief executive of the Company) who has interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part IV of the SFO, were as follows:

REQRAREZHR

Long positions in the share capital of the Company

Approximate percentage
of Company’s

Capacity and issued share capital
Name Nature of interest Number of shares BARAT B BT
REREM SORERNE BEROEA BRAEBNED L
27
Taiwan Mayer (Note 1) Corporate 300,000,000 52.08%
BEET (fit1) NS
b
Mayer Corporation Development Corporate 300,000,000 52.08% E};
. . HA
International Limited (“BVI Mayer”) NC] 5
Mayer Corporation Development s
International Limited ( [BVI Mayer ]| ) i
]
. al
Mr. Cheng Wen-ching (Note 2) Personal 40,000,000 6.95%
BXELE (H1i2) A N
&
Brocheng International Limited (Note 3) Corporate 20,000,000 3.47% g
Brocheng International Limited (#7z£3) NG
Note 1:  BVI Mayer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Mayer. Taiwan Mayer Mt BVI Mayer%éi%%ﬁﬁ%%’ﬁmgﬁﬂ: 1R
is deemed to be interested in the 300,000,000 shares held by BVI Mayer B RAEED - aEXDWRAEABYI
under the SFO. Mayerffr#% 74 2 300,000,0000% % 15 7 425 ©
Note 2:  Mr. Cheng Wen-ching personally holds 20,000,000 shares and indirectly Mtz §5Y§%$1/\%ﬁ%0,000,000Hx“H%ﬁ g2
holds 20,000,000 shares through Brocheng International Limited which is BBMERIEREAR 218 A2 A "]Brocheng
an investment holding company owned by his families. He is deemed to be International Limitedf] 351 7520,000,000{&
interested in the shares held by Brocheng International Limited under Part Bt o RIS MR EPIEXVE @ KR
XV of the SFO. /&% 5 Brocheng International Limited3 & %
2 et
Note 3:  Brocheng International Limited is wholly owned by Mr Cheng Wen-ching H74#3 © Brocheng International Limited J3 £3 85 3 B2 45

and his families which held 20,000,000 shares. Mr Cheng Wen-ching
are deemed to be interested in the shares held by Brocheng International
Limited under Part XV of the SFO.

EREREZEES - £520,000,0008
15 o IRBEFEFRPEROIEXVE - BXXEE
A 1% 48 & %k B Brocheng International Limited
RAERMD 2 -
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the directors of
the Company are not aware of any other person/entity (not being a
director or a chief executive of the Company) who has interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part IV of the SFO, or who is directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the shares of the Company or equity
interest in any member of the Group representing 10% or more of the
equity interest in such company.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any directors, supervisors or their respective spouse or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements also constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The following transactions between certain connected
parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been
entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements,
if necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

(1) On 28 October 2001, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Ms. Shih Hui-ping, the spouse of Mr. Lo Haw (being a director
of the Company), pursuant to which the Group agreed to pay a
monthly rental of RMB10,000 in respect of the Group’s occupation
of Shanghai office for a term commencing on 28 October 2001.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the rental is based
on normal commercial terms and is conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group. This transaction constitutes
a de minimis continuing connected transaction exempted from
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements in accordance with Rule 14A.33(3) of the
Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (Continued)

)

()

On 6 May 2008, the Group entered into an aircraft lease
agreement with Daily Air Corporation, Inc. (the “Daily Air")
regarding the leasing of four aircrafts and the provision of
consultancy services for a term of three years commencing on 6
May 2008. Mr. Huang Chun-fa, a non-executive director of the
Company, is a substantial shareholder of Daily Air. Pursuant to
the lease agreement, Daily Air agreed to pay a monthly rental fee
and consultancy fee payable of US$98,000 for four aircrafts and
US$20,000, for the three years ending 7 June 2011, respectively.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the lease rental
is based on normal commercial terms and is conducted in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group. This
transaction constitutes a continuing connected and discloseable
transaction exempted from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules.

Raw Material Purchase Agreement

On 13 April 2007, Guangzhou Mayer, a 81.4% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Raw Material
Purchase Agreement with Taiwan Mayer pursuant to which
Guangzhou Mayer agreed to purchase and Taiwan Mayer agreed
to sell raw materials for the period commencing from 1 April 2007
to 31 March 2010.

Pursuant to the Raw Material Purchase Agreement, the Directors
expect that the annual caps for the Raw Material Purchase for the
three years ending 31 March 2010 will be US$3.9 million, US$4.29
million and US$4.719 million respectively.

During the year, Guangzhou Mayer do not purchase any raw
materials from Taiwan Mayer.
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Other Matters
(1) Very Substantial Acquisition of a Taiwan Property Group

On 6 October 2008, the Company entered into an S&P Agreement
with the vendors to which the Company was conditionally agreed
to purchase the shares, representing approximately 88.59% of
the entire issued share capital of Durban Group at an aggregate
consideration of NT$1,397 million. The directors consider that
the Acquisition is in line with the Group’s current business
diversification strategy and with quickly enhance the assets base of
the Group.

However, the Asian countries, including Taiwan suffered a heavy
sell-off after the U.S. financial market went into tailspin following
the collapse of some financial institutions. And the impact of credit
freeze triggered by this was felt through the financial system.

Given that the sudden crash of the financial system, the Board
has decided to terminate the acquisition due to certain conditions
precedent of the agreement had not been fulfilled or waived
on 31 December 2008, being the long stop date for fulfillment
of the conditions precedent of the agreement. By taking into
consideration of the global economic downturn and in the interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, the directors
decided not to extend the long stop date. Accordingly, the S&P
Agreement became null and void ab initio and the Company’s
obligations to purchase the shares is Durban Group lapsed.

Senior Management and Company Secretary

Biographical details of the senior management and company secretary
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of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 19.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by CCIF CPA Limited who

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Hsiao Ming-chih

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 April 2009

182198 °

BB ED

AU HEE B RE e M EBHRERA
B/ - LRSS R G B R

BT
EEEGm
EY
BEGE

8 —_ZETNFOA-_++H



Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identify and formalize the best corporate
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (“Principles”) and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“"CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Company has complied with most of
the Code Provisions save for the Code Provisions on internal controls
which are to be implemented for accounting periods commencing on
or after 1 July 2005 pursuant to the CG Code and certain deviations
from the Code Provisions in respect of Code Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2,
details of which are explained below. The Company periodically reviews
its corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue to
meet the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its board of
directors (“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the
Company and transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2008, the Board consisted of seven executive
directors and four non-executive directors (of whom three are
independent).

The independent non-executive directors are all experienced individuals
from a range of industries and geographies. Their mix of professional
skills and experience is an important element in the proper functioning
of the Board and in ensuring a high standard of objective debate and
overall input to the decision-making process. The Board has received
from each independent non-executive director a written confirmation
of their independence and has satisfied itself of such independence up
to the approval date of this report in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The biographical details of the directors are provided on pages 15 to 17
of this report.

The Code Provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr Hsiao Ming-chih has been both the Chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. Given the Company’s current stage of
development, the Board considers that vesting the roles of Chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person facilitates the execution
of the Company’s business strategies and maximizes effectiveness of its
operations. The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time
to time and shall consider the appropriate adjustment should suitable
circumstance arise.

The Board at Work

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the group. It meets in person on a half-yearly basis and
on other occasions when a Board-level decision on a particular matter
is required. The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
directors’ appointment, succession planning, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other significant
operational and financial matters.

The majority of Board meetings are scheduled to last one full day, with
directors receiving details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each Board meeting.

Although the capacity of any board to involve itself in the details of a
large international business is limited, the Company aims to provide
its independent non-executive directors with extensive exposure and
access to its operations and management. Over the past two years, the
number and duration of Board meetings have increased and the Board
agenda is structured to address the broad spectrum of key governance
issues on a regular and systematic basis.
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The Board at Work (Continued)

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to
management include the preparation of annual and interim accounts
for Board approval before public reporting, execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of
adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

The Group’s chief financial officer also attends all board meetings
to advise on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, mergers and acquisitions, and accounting and financial
matters.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director processing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Board at Work (Continued)

The non-executive directors together have substantial experience in
fields of auditing, business, accounting, corporate internal control
and regulatory affairs. Through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests and serving on Board committees, all non-executive directors
make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

The Company has not yet adopted Code Provision A.4.1 which provides
that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. All the non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term although in practice they are
subject to retirement on rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meetings pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.
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Committees £Z88g

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are ETEREECEERMEIIEE DB T=

allocated to three committees which operate under defined terms of BZEe ZEZESHREMTBESE

reference. The composition of the committees during 2007/08 and up B - RZTTt TN\ FEREEAFIR

to the date of this report is set out in the table below. HEAE ZES 2HEKREHIINTE -

Directors Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

Bz ERZEEE yMzESE REZEE

Executive Director ${TEE

Hsiao Ming-chih (Chairman) BR&E (£/%) Member A% & Member 5 8

(redesignated on 9/12/2008) (R=ZTNE+ AL BHAT)

Lai Yueh-hsing #E 2 Chairman £ /& Chairman £ &

Lo Haw &2

Cheng Dar-terng Bhi£& 35

Chiang Jen-chin E1=%1

Lin Meng-chang # % % (resigned on 11/2/2009) (R ~ZZT N F — A +—HE(D)

Lu Wen-yi B33 b
K

_ 5]

Non-Executive Director ¥#{TEE =

Huang Chun-fa E&% o
a

Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHTES Z

Lin Sheng-bin #EEE, Member X & Member fX & Member f% 8

Huang Jui-hsiang EHr# Chairman £/ Member A% & Member A% & §

Alvin Chiu ##i{E Member A% & Member f% & Member 5 8 j;
Py

Audit Committee EREEE

The Audit Committee is comprised of three independent non-executive %ﬁ%é‘%m = RBULIENITERENK

directors who together have substantial experience in the fields of g5 WE CEEAREESEHBIE

accounting, business, corporate governance and regulatory affairs. %&ﬁ%g,@%ﬁ

The committee is responsible for monitoring the reporting, accounting, ZECSBERERTHERE PR - g5

E
financial and control aspects of the executive management’s activities. It~ BAFSREIRET - TE A 2 EEBAEER
has full access to the Group’s chief financial officer to hear directly any TSR - EEERNIEZIPTRNETSE
concerns of the internal audit department that may have arisen during ZITIERBS| 2 MR -
the course of the department’s work.

R B TR AREINEZ B 2 RIS LB

o

The committee also monitors the appointment and function of the

& A

Group's external auditor.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 August 2005
and is comprised of three independent non-executive directors, one
non-executive director and one executive director (as the Committee
Chairman).

The committee determines the compensation structure and rewards for
the chief executive officer and other executive directors and monitors
the policies being applied in remunerating other senior executives
in the Group. In addition, it has responsibility for reviewing and
making appropriate recommendations to the Board on management
development and succession plans for executive directors and senior
management levels.

The fundamental policy underlying the Company’s remuneration and
incentive schemes is to link total compensation for senior management
with the achievement of annual and long-term performance goals.
By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels for
delivering on-target performance, the Company seeks to attract,
motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-term success.
Senior management incentive schemes include any equity component
that is designed to align the long-term interest of management with
those of shareholders.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 August 2005
and is comprised of three independent non-executive directors, one
non-executive director and one executive director (as the Committee
Chairman).

The committee is responsible for the identification and evaluation of
candidates for appointment or reappointment as a director, as well as
the development and maintenance of the Group’s overall corporate
governance policies and practices.
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TEERKSE

Board and Committee Attendance EESRZEEEZHER

The Board held 10 regular meetings in 2008 and the average i%ﬁﬁ’\_ggﬂi%ﬂ%@ﬂ‘f’ REBEE
attendance rate was 61%. Details of the attendance of individual FHHEFEER/1% c RZE ‘{:/?)\Hﬁﬂl
directors at Board meetings and committee meetings during the FE EANEERNEZSeEREETEE
2007/08 financial year are set out in the table below. ZHERFBEHN T

Number of meetings attended/held
HEBITERRE

Remuneration Nomination

Directors Full Board Audit Committee Committee Committee

BE =g EREES FHEES REZRES

Executive Directors H{TES

Hsiao Ming-chih FE&E 8/10 2/2 112
Lai Yueh-hsing %8 2 & 10/10 12 22 37
Lo Haw Z&)2 2/10
Cheng Dar-terng EBiE % 7/10
Chiang Jen-chin #{—8k 10/10 )IH#
Lin Meng-chang #h & 6/10 :3;
Lu Wen-yi B3 8/10 =
at
Non-Executive Director 3#{TEE ?;
Huang Chun-fa & &% 2/10 ol
Independent Non-Executive §
Directors Bk HITES :;
Lin Sheng-bin #REE & 2/10 0/2 112 0/2 H
Huang Jui-hsiang & Im#f 5/10 2/2 2/2 2/2
Alvin Chiu 8 1E 7/10 2/2 2/2 2/2
Average attendance rate 61% 67% 80% 70%
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for
other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices are served in
accordance with the required notice period stated in the relevant terms
of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or to the relevant committee members at least 2
days before each Remuneration Committee Meeting or at least 4 days
before each Audit Committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors
or any of their associates have a material interest.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for ensuring that an adequate system of
internal controls is maintained within the Group, and for reviewing its
effectiveness through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (a) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Group’s assets;
(b) ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.
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Internal Control and Risk Management
(Continued)

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’s
objectives.

The processes to identify and manage key risks to the achievement
of the Group’s strategic objectives are an integral part of the internal
control environment. Such processes include strategic planning,
the appointment of senior management, the regular monitoring
of performance, control over capital expenditure and investments
and the setting of high standards and targets for safety, health and
environmental performance.

The management maintains and monitors the system of controls on an
ongoing basis.

The Group's internal audit department, under the supervision of
the chief financial officer, independently reviews these controls and
evaluates their adequacy, effectiveness and compliance, and reports
such findings directly to the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The
Board, through the Audit Committee assesses the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system which covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions on an annual basis.

During 2007/2008, based on the evaluations made by the
management, the chief financial officer and external auditors, the Audit
Committee was satisfied that nothing has come to its attention to cause
the Audit Committee to believe that the system of internal control is
inadequate; and there is an ongoing process to identify, evaluation and
manage significant risks faced by the Group.

External Auditor

The Company’s independent external auditor is CCIF CPA Limited. The
Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the
external auditor and also reviews any non-audit functions performed
by the external auditor for the Group. In particular, the Committee
will consider, in advance of them being contracted for and performed,
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
conflict of interest.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels to
account to shareholders for the performance of the Company. These
include the annual report and accounts, the interim report, periodic
company announcements made through the Stock Exchange, as well as
through the annual general meeting. The Company aims to provide its
shareholders and potential investors with high standards of disclosure
and financial transparency. In order to provide effective disclosure
to investors and potential investors and to ensure they all receive
equal access to the same information at the same time, information
considered to be of a price sensitive nature is released by way of formal
public announcements as required by the Listing Rules. The Company
also welcomes comments and questions from shareholders at its annual
general meeting.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Group has adopted procedures governing directors’ securities
transactions in compliance with the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for
Accounts

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2008.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 42 to 43.
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Shareholder rights and investor relations

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s
Articles of Association. Details of such rights and procedures are
included in all circulars to shareholders and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings. Whenever voting by way of a poll is required,
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll will be explained.

Poll results will be published in newspapers on the business day
following the shareholders’ meeting and posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Z A RS

®

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

20/F Sunning Plaza
10 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MAYER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mayer
Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) set out on pages 44 to 164,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of the report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 April 2009

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P05049
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE Wl E R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5E FRARY TETAR®

CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEE
Turnover EERE 4 667,193 1,260,425
Cost of sales $HE K AR (603,338) (1,197,423)
Gross profit E A 63,855 63,002
Other revenue E s 5(a) 14,183 10,832
Other net income H iU A F5E 5(b) 2,838 5,058
Valuation gain on "EWMEL

investment property HERZE 15(a) 36,655 -
Distribution costs Pali=IDN (9,155) (13,681)
Administrative expenses THBR X (44,408) (34,696)
Other operating expenses B (18,273) (2,899)
Profit from operations gyl 45,695 27,616
Finance costs A& A AR 6(a) (19,388) (19,233)
Profit before taxation B 4 AT S A 6 26,307 8,383
Income tax Fri5Ht 7 (15,759) (3,106)
Profit for the year from continuing REREEBT 2

operations F A5 A 10,548 5,277
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued ERIEEB

operation FRa A 8 - 11,634

Profit for the year F AR T 10,548 16,911




Consolidated Income Statement

mE Wl E R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
ZEENF —TTAE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
it FrARY FETARE
Attributable to: s
Equity shareholders of the Company KRAERRR 11 7,222 13,802
Minority interests BB RES 3,326 3,109
Profit for the year ERiRF 10,548 16,911
Dividends payable to equity ERELER
shareholders of the Company RARERRRE
attributable to the year: A ZRE
Final dividend proposed after the HEBREHIK 45
balance sheet date RERE 12(a) - 11,520
Earnings per share SREF 13 )::
3
From continuing and discontinued REBELEEBR =
operations BRIEES at
— Basic and diluted —HArREE RMBAE#1.25 cents?  RMBAR#2.69 cents?? E
ol
From continuing operations REBBELEER N
- Basic and diluted ~EAREE RVMBAR#1.25 cents?  RMBAR0.83 cents S
_FH‘
From discontinued operation RECRIEER =
~ Basic and diluted -EXREE N/ATER  RMBAR1.86 centsn

The notes on pages 53 to 164 form part of these financial statements.

FES3E164E 2 MERPBHEZ — &7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31 December 2008 R=—ZEZN\F+-_A=1+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —IELF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 FRrARYE FHARY
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 15(a)
— Other property, plant and equipment —H iy - IR RERE 113,759 117,110
— Investment property —REWE 215,589 -
329,348 117,110
Prepaid lease payments AT HEE A 15(f) 7,972 8,194
Goodwill SRS 16 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of property WY BENIZS 18 = 192,142
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 19 21,371 -
358,691 317,446
Current assets REEE
Inventories A 20 89,975 169,214
Trade and other receivables E%EEH@E%’X&
H th & Y kT 21 126,199 396,694
Prepaid lease payments TETHE & FRIE 15(f) 222 222
Trading securities R GHEH 22 - 15,633
Tax recoverable AT Y [B] %7 18 27(a) 3,905 -
Pledged bank deposits E%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ?‘%‘ﬂ 23 5,578 46,537
Deposits with banks RITHER (BIHE
(maturity over 3 months) E_1I A#&) 980 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeFBEIEE 24 78,393 67,461
305,252 695,761
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 139,458 311,402
Trade and other payables Z Z IR R
H fth f& A 5RIE 25 53,217 326,478
Current taxation BIEARL 18 27(a) = 2,368
192,675 640,248
Net current assets REBEEFE 112,577 55,513
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABEE 471,268 372,959
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 104,683 -
Deferred tax liabilities EIETRIEAE 27(b) 7,964 -
112,647 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 358,621 372,959




Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERAER

At 31 December 2008 R=_ZEZEN\F+-_A=1+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5E FRARY TETAR®

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFEE 29(a)

Share capital A& A 59,460 59,460

Reserves 1 237,376 245,143

Proposed final dividend R R EIRE B 12(a) = 11,520
Total equity attributable to AREERBRR

equity shareholders AR

of the Company 296,836 316,123
Minority interests DHRRER 61,785 56,836
TOTAL EQUITY R 358,621 372,959

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 April

EEEeN_TTAFHA - tEBRHERRE

H
~N

=R = i A

% £ 8007

2009. RETIE -
Hsiao Ming-chih Lai Yueh-hsing mEE BER
Director Director EF EF

The notes on pages 53 to 164 form part of these financial statements. FES3R164B 2 AT KRG 2 —HH -
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EEREREX

As at 31 December 2008 R=ZZN\F+-_HA=+—H

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

2008 2007
—EENE TETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
{hFEa FTRARYE FrARE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WS R 15(b) 2 4
Investment in subsidiaries BB AR ZE®RE 17 201,206 124,378
201,208 124,382
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H {th jE kIR 21 240 255
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL BT B A RIZRIA 17 7,141 73,070
Pledged bank deposits ERBIRITER 23 4,120 4,378
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeFBEIEE 24 4,996 10,986
16,497 88,689
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 6,866 -
Other payables H fth & T 5RIE 25 30,850 1,090
37,716 1,090
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BEE) EEFE (21,219) 87,599
NET ASSETS EESFE 179,989 211,981
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A f# 29(b)
Share capital A& 7 59,460 59,460
Reserves i 120,529 141,001
Proposed final dividend R R HARR B 12(a) — 11,520
TOTAL EQUITY BREZ 179,989 211,981

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 April EZgN_TENFOA T HEEREK
2009. RETIE -

Hsiao Ming-chih
Director

Lai Yueh-hsing BEHE BEHRE
Director EFE EFE

The notes on pages 53 to 164 form part of these financial statements. FS3RN164B 2 AT BREZ —3 50 -



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARBRRRER
Statutory
Statutory public Proposed
Share Share  Special  surplus  welfare Exchange Retained final Minority Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve fund  reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity

BA ROEE BHBE EEARS iEQEE ENRE  REER RERS s BREE AR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O0D  RMB'O00  RMB'0OO  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TRARE TRARE TRARE TRIARE TIARE TRARE TRARE TAARE TRARE TTARY TLARE

At 1 January 2007 WZZTLF-F-H 50,480 37,586 67,570 18,254 4,950 (1,548) 77,054 9,600 263,946 97,846 361,792
Capital contribution —HkrE
received by a non-wholly HEAF
owned subsidiary from a EL8
minority shareholder RETE - - - - - - - - - 1031 10331
Issue of new shares, net of BOERG - Nk
issuance costs BN
(note 29(c)) (Fii&E29(0)) 8980 44,759 - - - - - - 53739 - 53739
Appropriations Al - - - 1271 - - 1,271) - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries BERIEEBREE
attributable to discontinued HERBAT
operations (note 31) (M&31) - - - - - (139 - - (139)  (53444)  (53,583)
Exchange differences on RESBRE
translation of financial BENIERESE pe
statements to presentation ZEHER b
currency - - - - - (5,625) - - (5,625) (1,006) (6,631) <3
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - 13802 - 13802 3109 16911 =
Dividend paid (note 12(b)) BARE (M:H120) - - - - - - - (96000  (9,600) - (9,600) ot
Dividend declared in respectof ~ AEEERZ =
the current year (note 12(a)) k8 (FEE12() - - - - - - (11,5200 11,520 - - - S
al
At 31 December 2007 W=ET+F+ZA=1-H 59,460 82,345 67,570 19,525 4,950 (7,312) 78,065 11,520 316,123 56,836 372,959
N
At 1 January 2008 RZZT\F-F-H 59,460 82,345 67,570 19,525 4,950 (7.312) 78,065 11,520 316,123 56,836 372,959 8
Capital contribution received —HkrE @
by a non-wholly owned =/ bl
subsidiary from minority ELERR =
shareolders A - - - - - - - - - 3,266 3,266
Appropriations ol - - - 1,225 - - (1,225) - - - -
Exchange differences on REHRRE
translation of financial RESEHES
statements to presentation ZEREE
currency - - - - - (10,063) - - (10,063) (1,643)  (11,706)
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - 122 - 71222 3326 10,548
Dividend paid (note 12(b)) BHRE (M:H120) - - - - - - - (11520)  (11,520) - (11520
Dividend declared to AP BER
minority shareholder BRZRE - - - - - - (49260 492 - - -
Dividend paid to minority BRPERR
shareholder 28 - - - - - - - (4926)  (4,926) - (4,926)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEN\E+-F=1-H 59,460 82,345 67,570 20,750 4950  (17,375) 79,136 - 296,836 61,785 358,621

The notes on pages 53 to 164 form part of these financial statements. F53E 1648 2 M REKM B HE 2 —3

o

N
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
hFEa FTRARYE FrARE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES rEER
Profit before taxation R B A% R
Continuing operations FREKEET 26,307 8,383
Discontinued operation B ER - 1,652
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries EARIE SR
attributable to discontinued & E R A
operation Fri5 U 2= = 8,715
26,307 18,750
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income B U A (4,513) (1,907)
Dividend income from listed securities EWEFZBRERA (56) (67)
Finance costs B & AR 7R 19,388 21,825
Depreciation e 12,684 19,609
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &1 T & 7K I8 2 # 4 222 222
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries PR IEEBEIE 2
attributable to discontinued HEN B R R
operation FTis W zs 31 = (8,715)
Impairment loss for trade and other B 5 FE YR 5% R oAb FE U
receivables IB 2 REEE 667 1,558
Write down of inventories WoRFE 34,821 -
Impairment loss for available-for-sale AP EeREEY
financial assets REEE 13,956 720
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEE 2 Wan F58 (72) (240)
Valuation gain on investment BEME 2 HERE
property (36,655) -
Net loss on derivative financial instrument #1448 T A 7 E 18558 386 -
Foreign exchange gain PE W Uk 2= (2,766) (3,361)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE CHANGES & EE BB~
IN WORKING CAPITAL Fe sl 64,369 48,394
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL, () 44,418 (26,851)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 R R H At
other receivables FEUW SR IBR A (3 h0) 269,828 (32,404)
Decrease/(increase) in trading securities T HBEEBL S (EN) 15,633 (15,633)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and EZEMIRR R E A
other payables e R E CRid) /1 (111,130) 11,443
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) REmB/ (FTA)ZRE
OPERATIONS 283,118 (15,051)
Income tax paid B TS (13,598) (234)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ ReETEHME, (FTA)
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES Z2EEFHE 269,520 (15,285)




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mEEHETRERXR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P& FTRTARY FTARY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEMSHIEA 144 1,810
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets & A[EE & E 2 (3 (12,559) (34,078)
Payment for the purchase of investment ~ BEARE W%
property A RE:N (164,979) -
Payment for the purchase of BATHEESREE
available-for-sale financial assets AT (35,074) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of property WY 2 BE8ES - (29,625)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits with RIT R (BIHBE
banks (maturity over 3 months) —@A%)(1Em E (980) 21,800
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEEBRITEIORLD
bank deposits (3ghn) 40,959 (44,027)
Interest received =S 4,513 1,907
Dividend received from listed securities TIESAERE 56 67
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries B IEEFEEZ
attributable to discontinued HEMBAREHRE -
operations, net of cash disposed kAR EZ2Re 31 - 28,846
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZEAZ
ACTIVITIES ReFHE (167,920) (53,300)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mESES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT ETIS F0E - 53,739
Proceeds from new bank borrowings FIGIRITIEE 2 ATB A 1,192,199 96,025
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRTEE (1,259,460) (28,823)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders ENARGEERE
of the Company pdi ¥} (11,520) (9,600)
Dividend paid to minority shareholder ERDBREZRE (4,926) -
Interest paid ERFE (19,388) (21,825)
Capital contributions received by —MIERE
a non-wholly owned subsidiary LBy E=MNE
from minority shareholders ELHREITE 3,266 10,331
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED MEEH (FTA) Bz
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReEE (99,829) 99,847

(9)]
N

=R = i A
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE —EETLF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M RE FTRARYE FrARE
NET INCREASE IN CASH HeRBELEEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B hnE £ 1,771 31,262
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—B—HZHRER
I JANUARY HEEEEH 24 67,461 45,689
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES /MNEE RSB > S/ &
CHANGES 9,161 (9,490)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+=ZB=+—-H=2
31 DECEMBER ReERBELEEER 24 78,393 67,461

The notes on pages 53 to 164 form part of these financial statements. ES3R164E 2T AU BREZ—HD -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Mayer Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its registered
office is PO Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of steel pipes,
steel sheets and other products made of steel, property investment
and leasing of aircrafts.

The Company has its primary listing on Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The functional currencies of the Company
and its major subsidiaries are Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
("RMB") respectively. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless
otherwise stated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments and
interpretations which are or have become effective. It has
also issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note
3 provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

—REH
ERERERARA(ARRAF]) AER
ERSHMKL2BRAR - Eikfl
PE R 7 ik APO Box 309GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies * 2~ 2 &) & H @ A
A(MEIAEE]) 2T 2XBA/RE
REEME WA REMMEERD -
MERERREEE -

FEMERXHMARRDE (T
TR/ ARRBZEE LA

AEERHBARZMBRERBE
MIEE - DRAHERKEET IR
RERFNER ((HEEE]DFE -
ARARETEMB AR ZIEEY
DHBETRARE ([ARE]) - &
EMBHREATTAREIIR S
BRBAERI

EFREEE
(a) WHIEH

AN EREIZRBEBS SR
e (BB ETHAE]) BHEZ AT
EERABEBMBHRELEL (BB
BIISsRE 2R ) (WRBEIEMAB
BAZERIESMIS®REER -
EE g EN (BB g %£8]))
ki)  BELERMZ TR
Al R BB R AUES 2 BB EM
MRE o ABI SRS MF A BT
BHLEMRA @A TG
NEBREMAZETZSHBERE
T o

BEGHMAGERMETHE
AR RER BT LA
HIE R E TH REERTZ
TRV BHRELER  ZFEIR
REENARRTF B A Z &5t HE
BRE R AT ALR R B © FTFE3
REFEBERERZTEREEE A
KA ST ERAR - WA
BRERRZEHHEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(9]

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment property is stated at its fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below (see note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 40.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

NE-FF\FI-A=+—ALEE

2. TESTHBE (&

(b) MBHREHFEREE

(9]

BE_ZTN\F+_-_HA=1+—H
FFENGEMBREBREARD
AIREMBAR -

RAEVEREMANGTEEER
FESLRAE - EREMRZ AT
BIIRERSN - FIER T I &R
RS (RHEE26) -

BEEERETATEVBRE
ERMPBRERTEIFEL A
B~ EFAIRER - B LA E - A
AMBRREFESIERRNER
FEERA BN AR E
HEE - BEEENGENERR
R ELRNEBBHEGERE
BEMRE EREEMBERIR
T ERHABEEMNEBNIRE
B ER - FHit - BERERA B
BRINZEMEET -

BEEGTHERMZS M
AR - BRI EFH AT R
EEH IR EHER
CHIDEEZ 28I & P LR
EFTEIMER] BRI MR -

EEERERBEBVBHHREED
RETEL M BMEEEATE
ZHE - URBBARBREHT
FEAEHERARZHE B
B 5E405T 7% ©

B D A R D B R 5

MEAR S AASEEEH &
B-EAEEERNEE HE
BB REEHER  #FEEE
EBPESH S - A FEE
B o MAH IR HIER - 5EZER
BRI T 2 BRI -
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests
are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the
year between minority interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the
Group has been recovered.

2. TESTHEE (&)

(0

MEARARDBRRERS ()

A 2 B R B T e 4% )
MEAEAHAERRAMB®
TR MEEERIREILEARLE

SEARFIRER X5 MEE
TEERRARERZMELE ZE
A AREBH G N R R ERA M
HERT2HEE - AETEER
RAIMRGMESE ZEMARER
BRI THEE - 7 ERER K
=mAAR - MR AN EORE R E
R o

PR RERIELIFHARFE
EXEBNBAREERER %
AT B A R & E R E A
3o BLUL T 5 - A5 B3 R B 3%
FRETA AWE EAEIME
B NBAEEBREAAERS
MEBEMAENANEL - D&
BRESNGEERESHRAZ
BEED - RERRAERRR
AR D FIIR o D BARE
SAEAEBEREEERSWRAER
WIERF R m F R E B ARREIIE
FARALBBRREREAQ R ED
R zEZ D -

DB R S G B IR E
PTG B B8 A R RUR R 25 - B RE AR
DIEF BN D BECR 2 —
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REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
note 2(m) depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less any impairment losses (see note 2(i)ii)),
unless the investment is classified as held for sale.

Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities. Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(i)ii)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

2.

£

(0

(d)

EEFEER (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTESHBER(E
(Continued)

(e) Other investments in equity securities (e) HMRAFHFRKRE

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at cost,
which is their transaction price unless fair value can be more
reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables
include only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are

AEBEARNRRZBEARFRE
(BRPI B A RRESN) ZERIGAT ¢

A EF I E N IR AME (AE
R HER)FIR - BWAARE—IR
HERRABRABEMSHEE G
B AR A SR ER
BRON e RABRBERHKA
HET XA &R - WEREH
BRABHESBARDT

HER S AR BERE MR
BRBAE  EAEERSRA

Ul
~N

recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet REERTEEZRTPER K5 ﬁ:

date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or BHEEH  SEMFTERFE - s

loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss Bz BERBRERPER - =

recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or BakPRRAZBBFHRLTE af

interest earned on these investments as these are recognised BN E R E RIS 2 A ?;

in accordance with the policies set out in note 2(r)(iii) and (iv). BRAE  ARBEHAKRBIFE e
SR I RE2(r) (i) B (iv) P 5 B 5K

o, S

SO o

(o]

EY. 3 S, \ N - N7 —m

Investments in equity securities that do not have a listed W B AN 38 545 & PAE BB Th 45 I o

market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Other investments in securities are classified as available-for-
sale equity securities and are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity. Dividend income from these
investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(r)(iii) and, where these
investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(r)(iv). When these
investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

EHHEHRERE QA FERELE
BitE AIREREREEAR
2R P DABK AN B 25 R B S 1R T AR
AR (R EE230)0)) -

HihBFBHREWBEATHRDE
BARFES  OFEBEAFENRS
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HAEQATE FEzREBSH
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

(f)

For an investment in equity instruments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market, or derivatives
linked to such equity instruments, it is measured at cost
less impairment (because its fair value cannot be measured
reliably).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the
investments or when they expire.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(r)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 2(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(h).

2. TESTHEE (&)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(9)

Investment property (Continued)

Property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property is classified as property, plant
and equipment and stated at cost until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is reclassified as
investment property at fair value. Any difference between the
fair value of the property at that date and its previous carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(i)ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— freehold land is not depreciated;

Building and factory premises BFEBE
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Plant and machinery Hes R AR
Motor vehicles AE

Aircrafts ot

HEMEKE
B RERBFAERE

2. TESTHEE (&)

(f)

(9)

BREWE (R)

ERRBERERARREDEN
BZMEDER/YE  BENR
B WIRAAR BEEZET
BABEREBRTIRILE  BEY
XERBRAFEEFDBEREK
EME -ZMERERZAYE
HEBERAEZAZENER

HibysE - S RR1E
REZER HWE  HENE
HBRKAR BT E L 2T RE
5148 (R BT EE203) i) ABR ©

BITERZZME HBEMREZ
A BREMBRAR  BEZSET
PRAN - R AnE R - F) 2 AE A IR
KRB B A M IRTEIA B PrEE
RBEH KA - L FSEE LI E
b EERATEERA (R
2(1) °

HEXZAME  HENRER
BzBEELEMSHREFH
HEMEAKRAEZEZR IR
HEXERAPEBRRR AR -

SLEERAIER FHUERZX
MR - S RRBEE 2K
KoORERMGERSEE(WH)

Mt HZFEMT :
—IKAEREL M TIIE

5%

10% —33'3%
10% —33"3%
10%

10% - 25%
10%

Ul
O

=R = i A

% £ 8007



Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(h)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings, the
costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the
period of construction or installation and testing, if any. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and are
available for intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to other property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 2(f)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,

the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are written off as an expense of the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as
an investment property.

(i) Impairment of assets

0]

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than investments
in subsidiaries: see note 2(i)(ii)) and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale
equity securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (Continued)

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For unlisted equity securities carried at cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities are
not reversed.

For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

—  For available-for-sale equity securities which are
stated at fair value, when a decline in the fair value
has been recognised directly in equity and there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in equity shall be removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than

properties carried at revalued amounts);

— investments in subsidiaries (except for those
classified as being held for sale); and

- goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use,
if determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see note 2(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill and available-for-sale equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()]

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(i)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

M

(m)

(n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(g)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement.
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e RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
under review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case they are
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided that those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(q)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBREN

For the year ended 31 December 2008

ﬁ_l,:

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(r)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

(i)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered to the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Service income

Service income is recognised when the services are
rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTHE (&)

(Continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) sglmE

~
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Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign
currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised directly in equity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the results of the Group’s operations not
denominated in RMB are translated into RMB, i.e. the
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange
rates for the year. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after
1 January 2005, are translated into Renminbi at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity. Goodwill on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition
of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences recognised in equity which relate
to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intend use or
sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer,
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REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(v)

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
toin (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the
operation is abandoned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the income statement,
which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the
purpose of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTHE (&)
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(Continued)

(w) Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,
corporate and financing expenses.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has where applicable applied the
following amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued
by the HKICPA which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and
their Interaction

The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
year adjustment is required.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations which have been
issued but are not yet effective for annual periods beginning on 1
January 2008.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(FRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs'

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements®

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible Hedged Items?

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate?

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards?
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combinations®

Operating Segments?
Customer Loyalty Programmes*

Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?

Transfer of Assets from Customers®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBREN

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 unless
otherwise stated in the specific HKFRS

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
6 Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009

HKAS 1 Revised affects certain disclosures of the financial
statements. Under the revised standard the Profit and Loss Account
is renamed as the “Income Statement”, the Balance Sheet is
renamed as the “Statement of Financial Position” and the Cash
Flow Statement is renamed as the “Statement of Cash Flows"”. All
income and expenses arising from transactions with non-owners
(i.e. the non-owner movements of equity) are presented under the
“Income Statement” and “Statement of Comprehensive Income”,
and the total carried to the “Statement of Changes in Equity”,
while the owner changes in equity are presented in the “Statement
of Changes in Equity”.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 July 2009.

HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes
in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The Company’s directors anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

TURNOVER 4., EXHE
Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to customers EEERRABELPHEZERNIEE
and rental income. The amount of each significant category BEEARBESWA - FA EEEE
of revenue recognised in turnover during the year, for both BRAREAFELEESRDRIEER
continuing and discontinued operations, is as follows: ZEBEFEWRBERET
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FRARYE FTARE
(restated)
(5 E5)
Continuing operations BELSEER
Sales of goods: HEEm
— steel — 3 652,220 1,200,977
- others - Hits 2,825 52,253
Gross rentals from leasing of aircrafts REBEE BB E 8,171 7,195
Gross rentals from investment property WEYEZHE LR 3,977 -
667,193 1,260,425
Discontinued operation (note 8) 2 1E R (MEES)
Sales of goods: aluminum HEEM 7 - 61,478
667,193 1,321,903
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2008

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

BE_TT\FH+-_A=t—HLFE

5. Hftm Kk HEAAW AR

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Consolidated
BESEEY BRIEER &E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EE\F ZTTHF “EE)\F ZTTHF -TT)\F ZTTLF
RMB' 000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
TRAR® FTHAR® TRARY FTRARE FTRARYE FTrTARE
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(ms7) (EE3) (mE5)
(a)  Other revenue (a) Hftrlgizz
Interest income on bank RITFHZ
deposits RESA 4,513 1837 - 70 4,513 1,907
Total interest income on I 3EE AT ETIA
financial assets not at fair BakzeR
value through profit or loss BEZFIE
LNt 4,513 1,837 - 70 4,513 1,907
Consultancy fee income ERERA 437 469 - - 437 469
Dividend income from listed ImESHz
securities REMA 56 67 - - 56 67
Sales of scrap materials HEREH 6,902 6,429 - - 6,902 6,429
Sundry income HIEMRA 2,275 2,030 - 1,235 2,275 3,265
14,183 10,832 - 1,305 14,183 12,137
(b)  Other netincome (b) HKAFE
Net realised gain on disposal HERHEH L
of trading securities BERNETE - 783 = - = 783
Net foreign exchange gain e 2,766 3,286 - 75 2,766 3,361
Net gain on disposal of HEETEEL
fixed assets W FE 7 - - 240 n 240
Valuation gain on trading ReEHL
securities fHEkR R - 989 = - - 989
2,838 5,058 - 315 2,838 5,373
17,021 15,890 - 1,620 17,021 17,510




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6. PFR# AT A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the BMERDREFE IR, GEA) AT &IE
following:
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Consolidated
RFECEER BRIEER =&
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

—22/\F -TTtF -BEN\F "TTLE PR\ -IRLH
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TRARE TRARM TRAR® TRARE TRIARY TIARY

(restated) (restated) (restated)
(%351 (=31 (e &31)
(@)  Finance costs (a) WERK
Interest on bank borrowings AR THEZE
wholly repayable BEZHIEE
ZHE
- within five years -1FR 15,457 19,233 - 2,592 15,457 21,825
— over five years -5 3,931 - - - 3,931 -
Total interest expense on WA TE
financial liabilities not at fair JINEBREZ
value through profit or loss SREEL
MERXER 19,388 19,233 - 2,592 19,388 21,825
(b)  Staff costs (b) EERK
Salaries, allowances and e RER
benefits in kind ENEH 23,332 18,256 - 5,752 23,332 24,008
Retirement scheme RIRGT B
contributions 1,854 1,739 - 361 1,854 2,100

25,186 19,995 - 6,113 25,186 26,108
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

6. KRB

Al A (&)

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Consolidated
BECEER BRILER &E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\F ZETLE “EE)\F ZTTHF —EE)N\F ZTTLF
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
TRAR® FTHARY TRAR% TRARE FTRARYE FTrTARE
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(e s31) (=31 (e &31)
() Otheritems (0 HtEE
Auditors' remuneration 2 Gl
- audit services - & R% 477 536 - - 477 536
~ other services —EfnfR% 134 - - - 134 -
Cost of inventories* FEXA
(see note 20) (RMEE20) 603,338 1,197,423 - 44420 603,338 1,241,843
Depreciation for property, plant NE HBER
and equipment RECTE 12,684 12,619 = 6,990 12,684 19,609
Amortisation of prepaid BNBENE
lease payments pd 5 22 22 - - 22 W2y,
Operating lease charges: BEBAXH -
minimum lease payments HIEBERT 1,351 3,728 = - 1,351 3,728
Impairment loss on trade B HRUIRH R
and other receivables AR
HEER 667 1,558 - - 667 1,558
Impairment loss on ftHERR
available-for-sale financial BEZAE
assets BR 13,956 720 - - 13,956 720
Gross rental income from BENE HEK
investment property less MNEEREREX
direct outgoings of £2,072,0007C A
RMB2,072,000 (2007: RMBNil) R(ZEZLEF:
TTARY) (1,905) - - - (1,905) -
Net realised loss on HERHERL
disposal of trading BEEREBRTE
securities 2,256 - - - 2,256 -
Net loss on derivative TESBTIALZ
financial instrument BEFE 386 - - - 386 -

Cost of inventories includes RMB52,627,000 (2007: RMB30,560,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation, operating lease charges and write
down of inventories for the year ended 31 December 2008, which are also
included in the respective amounts disclosed separately above or in note

6(c) for each type of expenses.

5 & Ak A £ 3552,627,0007T A R #
(ZZZT 4 :30,560,0007T A R #)
REARBE-ZENF+=A=1+—
BLEEEZETIRA FE - KLH
ERTARTFEME - BEEE IR
A LSBT 2 S B R ER
SRR IR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 7. ZREWBER2ZFIEH
STATEMENT

(@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) HZEWTZRZFBHA:
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Consolidated
BELEER BRILEK o)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

“22/\f -TTtF -BEN\F -TTLE CFI\F -IRLS
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TRARY TRARM TRAR® TRARE TRIARY TIARM

(restated) (restated) (restated)
(2 %351 (=31 (e &31)
Current tax BEAHE
~Hong Kong -k - - - - - -
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ — R EREMER 6,989 2,792 - - 6,989 2,792
~ Other jurisdictions —Eft R EER 323 211 - - 323 211
7,312 3,003 - - 1,312 3,003
Under/(over) provisionin ~ BEFERERRE/
respect of prior years (BERE)
~Hong Kong -& = - = - = -
—PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ —REIRERER - - - - - -
— Other jurisdictions —Ef R EER 13 76 - (1,267) 13 (1,191)
13 76 - (1,267) 13 (1,191)
Deferred tax EEBE
~ Current year (note 27(b)) —REE (F5527(00) 8,434 27 = - 8,434 27

15,759 3,106 = (1,267) 15,759 1,839
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REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)
(@ Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(Continued)

@)

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 and reduced corporate
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% which is effective
from the year of assessment 2008/2009. No Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been provided for in the financial
statements as the Group has no assessable profits for
the year (2007: Nil).

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress promulgated the
Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New Tax
Law"), which became effective on 1 January 2008.
According to the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008,
the standard enterprise income tax rate for enterprises
in the PRC was reduced from 33% to 25%. Further,
the State Council released the Implementation Rules
to the Enterprise Income Tax Law on 6 December 2007
and the Notice on the Implementation Rules of the
Grandfathering Relief under the Enterprise Income Tax
Law (Guo Fa [2007] No. 39) on 26 December 2007
(collectively, the “Implementation Rules”).

Under the New Tax Law and the Implementation
Rules, an entity established before 16 March 2007
that was entitled to preferential tax treatment prior
to promulgation of the New Tax Law is subject to
transitional tax rates commencing in 2008 (“Transitional
Tax Rate"”) before the new enterprise income tax rate of
25% applies. The Transitional Tax Rate of Guangzhou
Mayer Corporation Limited (“Guangzhou Mayer”) is
18%, 20%, 22% and 24% in 2008, 2009, 2010 and
2011 onwards respectively. From 2012 and onwards,
Guangzhou Mayer will be subject to income tax rate of
25%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)
(@ Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the tax authorities in the PRC, Guangzhou
Mayer was entitled to a preferential rate on enterprise
income tax of 10% for the year ended 31 December
2007.

Vietnam Mayer Company Limited (“Vietnam Mayer”)
is entitled to a tax concession period in which it is
fully exempted from Vietnam income tax for 3 years
starting from its first profit-making year (after net off
accumulated tax losses), followed by a 50% reduction
in the Vietnam income tax for the next 7 years. Current
year is the first profit making year of Vietham Mayer and
it is fully exempted from Vietnam income tax for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

7. ZEWERZAER (&)

(a)

REWERZAERA : (B)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(&)
RIBFERGIMA 2 HAE -
BEMNETRBE_TTLF
TZA=t—BLLEERE
FHE10% 2 EEMEHES
&K -
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Limited (B REXE D AIZEH
MRS B ARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #ZEZE—ZZE)/N\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 7.
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit at
the applicable tax rates:

(i)  Continuing operations

meEWERZAEH (&)

(b) IREAEFE 2 A HH
Fhia M) 2 E R -

() FHEEEER

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARY FTARE
(restated)
(5&&E5)
Profit before taxation B 758 A1 g A 26,307 8,383
Notional tax on profit before RREATMRER
taxation, calculated at the rates P A 2 = - ghEBRT A
applicable to profits in the tax wAEF R BENIE
jurisdictions concerned 15,008 1,369
Tax effect of non-deductible TR Z 2
expenses MIEZE 12,700 571
Tax effect of non-taxable income ~ /AR A 2 HIEZ 2 (12,329) (1,650)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KA mMEXRERZ
not recognised WMIEEEZHEBETE 732 2,948
Effect of tax exemption granted ~ MEME A FERFHIER R
to Vietnam subsidiary g (365) -
Tax effect of deductible temporary & A #8522 A] 054 & s
differences not recognised ERoBEYE - 27
Tax effect of utilisation of B AT R iR
deductible temporary AMBERERE Y
differences not recognised R E
in prior years - (235)
Under provision in prior years BEFECBRETR 13 76
Actual tax expenses BERHES N 15,759 3,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit at
the applicable tax rates: (Continued)

7. ZEWERZAER (&)

(b) WEBRAMEKFEZHALHES
FHE A Z Bk - ()

(i) Discontinued operation (i) BERLEES
2008 2007
—EEN\EF —EELF
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
FTrRARY FrARE
(restated)
(&E5)
Profit before taxation B B4 B U A = 1,652
Notional tax on profit before BREBETMRER
taxation, calculated at the rates ~ P& F| 2T 5
applicable to profits in the tax BN E cBERBIA
jurisdictions concerned - 264
Tax effect of non-taxable income ﬁ/,\u%mqﬁlKZfRﬁ% = (264)
Over provision in BT R
prior years - (1,267)
Actual tax credit BERHIEE R = (1,267)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION O IEEFK

Fullchamp Technologies Company Limited (“Fullchamp”), a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was previously regarded
as a subsidiary because the Company could control the majority
of the voting rights of its board of directors and general meetings,
taking into account of the written undertaking from its ultimate
holding company, Mayer Steel Pipe Corporation (“Taiwan Mayer”),
which holds 22.88% of the issued capital of Fullchamp.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group disposed
all its remaining 28.51% equity interests in Fullchamp to Taiwan
Mayer for a consideration of NTD149,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB34,609,000) in cash (the “Disposal”). The
Disposal was completed on 1 July 2007 and the Group ceased
its operation of Aluminum business including the design,
development, manufacture and trading of aluminum forged and
forged-spun wheels and other spare parts for automobiles.

RRABZIEEWMBRARIER B
BREOHBERAR (TEXR]D AERRR
—MEATE - AR E&LERATRE
SHEBRBROAERAR ([HEXE]
(AR BEXEBITAZ222.88%) 1F
H2 EEARE  ARAAEHEXE
ZERBRRAGEZARZEERARE -
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I8 4149,500,0007 ¥ &1 (M E R4
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 8. BERALEK(E)
The profit for the year from the discontinued operation of ERZERIEEBR ZERGHND 0
Fullchamp is analysed as follows: T
2007
—EE+F
RMB’'000
FLARE
Profit from operation of Fullchamp for the period KEEXZ BNEF 2,919
Gain on disposal of Fullchamp (note 31) HEBM W (MIFE31) 8,715
11,634
The results of Fullchamp for the period from 1 January 2007 to 1 NTARAEKR_ZEZ+HF—HA—HBZE
July 2007, which have been included in the consolidated income ZETLF LA —HIEHEEE (B
statement, were as follows: FAZAWRER)
Period ended
1 July 2007
HE-_ZTTtF
+A—H 18R
Note RMB’'000
BifEE FTARYE
Turnover S 4 61,478
Cost of sales SHEMA (44,420)
Gross profit EF 17,058
Other revenue H bz 5(a) 1,305
Other net income HipUg A\ 558 5(b) 315
Distribution costs 3 SRR (3,344)
Administrative expenses TR (9,808)
Other operating expenses HEAbE Rz (1,282)
Profit from operations R 4,244
Finance costs AR 6(a) (2,592)
Profit before taxation B AT 6 1,652
Income tax FriS#i 7 1,267

Profit for the period B A& 2,919




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 8. BERIEZEK (&)
The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued operation of NTASRZERIEEBREBEEZ_F
Fullchamp for the year ended 31 December 2007 was as follows: Tt+tF+-A=+—HILERAEGZ
ReneFE:

2007

—EELF

RMB’000

FTARE

Net cash outflow from operating activities EEREE 2RI FEE (39,761)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KE BB R MEFRE (2,569)

Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEZB 2 IRESRAFE 45,735

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Fullchamp at
the date of disposal are disclosed in note 31.

No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of Fullchamp.

BEXNREERR 2 EENABEMNIRE
BEERMWE31HEE -

HEEK 2SN EELHRBA B
-
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hE RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

9. EEME
BEEBRNHEDIE161EEEZES
& T

Year ended 31 December 2008
BE-FT/\FT-A=+—HLHFE

Salaries,
allowances
and  Retirement
Directors’ benefits scheme
Note fees in kind contributions Total
E2 e =1 BAK
B EEswe REYAZR FTEIMH R st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TRARY® TRARY® TrRARY® TrRARH
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih BEEEE - 104 - 104
Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing RBBEE A - 348 - 348
Mr. Lo Haw BESLE - 313 - 313
Dr. Lin Meng-chang MEEE LT 0) - 386 - 386
Mr. Lu Wen-yi BXETE - 161 - 161
Mr. Chiang Jen-chin Bl - 402 - 402
Mr. Cheng Dar-terng B A - 161 - 161
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Huang Chun-fa ERBEE - 89 - 89
Independent non-executive ~ B FHITES
directors
Mr. Lin Sheng-bin AREEH % A 27 - - 27
Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang EintEkE 27 - - 27
Mr. Alvin Chiu B EL L 203 - - 203
257 1,964 - 2,221
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e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEXME (&)

Year ended 31 December 2007
HE-_ZZE+FE+_A=+—HILFE

Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits scheme
Note fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2/ RIK
B &E BExHwE KEDM:m  GEIHX FEy

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
FTEAR® FTEARE FTTARE TrARE

Executive directors HITESE

Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing FEEES L - 175 - 175
Mr. Lo Haw HESE - 342 - 342
Dr. Lin Meng-chang MABEE L (i) - 421 - 421
Mr. Lu Wen-yi AXERE - 175 - 175
Mr. Chiang Jen-chin Bl AE - 324 - 324
Mr. Cheng Dar-terng PR LA - 175 - 175

Non-executive directors FHITES

Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih BHEEE - 134 - 134

Mr. Huang Chun-fa BERELE - 97 - 97

Independent BYFHITES

non-executive directors

Mr. Lin Sheng-bin MREETR 29 - - 29

Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang EintEkE 29 - - 29

Mr. Alvin Chiu HRERE 222 - - 222
280 1,843 - 2,123

Note: BT

(i)  Resigned on 11 February 2009. i BRZZEZAF-_A+—HET-

O
~N

=R =t i A
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2008, none of the directors held any share
options under the Company’s share option scheme. The details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, no emolument
was paid to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Company or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.

. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
none of them (2007: three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 9 above. The
emoluments of the remaining five (2007: two) individuals were as
follows:

9.

10.

EEME ()
RZZZNF+-A=+—B #H#&
EFREAATZBRESEIBAE
A BEARHE « BEAHE ST B 2 SIS BN B
B 28 -

RBE_TTZN\FR_TTLF+
A=+t—RLFE YEREEXM
B AERIMBRRIMBARRRRZ
NER-ZFZLF+-_A=1t—HL
FEITEEFNRUARNEAENE 2
e

REFHAL
AEEBAREHFHALS - HELR
AEF(CTTLF: ZHR)  HHM
WA EXMFO HE - BT HA (=
TTEF WA ALZHBMT

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

RMB’ 000 RMB"000

FTRrARYE FRARE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDAE 2,630 735
Contributions to defined contribution plans 1 7E %8 it Z 214 3¢ - -
2,630 735

Their emoluments were all within the band of RMBNil to
RMB892,400 (equivalent to HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, no
emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

WE 2 HEIES T AR ZE892,400
TARE (B8R =% T E1,000,000
EIT) LA @

REBE_TTZN\FR_ZTTLF+
A=t—RALHEE YERARZES
A 2 AT B S DAYE /5 00 BR 3R hn
BAKMEE 2 RE S IFRBEREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of approximately RMB8,259,000
(2007: RMB9,845,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

M. ARaEERREGEN

AREEERRELEA L BE
ERARRAVBRENEE ZEIR
498,259,000t AR (=T £ 4 :

9,845,0007T AR

DIVIDENDS 12. RE
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (@) AFEEEZENERR AR
attributable to the year: RZBRE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARY FTrTARKE
Final dividend proposed after the EERBBIRRERE R
balance sheet date of RMBNil BREBRED AR
per ordinary share (ZZTZ L5
(2007: RMB2 cents per ordinary share) &R EBER2H ARK) = 11,520

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid

(b)

ERAFEE#ERIRN 2 £ — 1@
MRFERIG BN AR R ER

during the year: BRRZBRE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLHF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FTRTARYE FTTARE
Final dividend in respect of the previous ERAAEFE#E RIKR 2
financial year, approved and paid — B B EFE 2 RERR B
during the year of RMB2 cents per ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁt@ﬁﬁzﬂj\ﬁﬁfg
ordinary share (2007: RMB2 cents per —ETLHF
ordinary share) FREBER2D ARE) 11,520 9,600

=R =t i A

% & 8007
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.8REF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXRZER
(i)  From continuing and discontinued operations () KEFFEAEE RN K
Ey

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB7,222,000 (2007:
RMB13,802,000) and the weighted average number
of 576,000,000 ordinary shares (2007: 513,402,740

BREXBMIDIBREARR
7] i R 25 A% R FE A R A
7,222,000t A\AREE (ZEF
+4F : 13,802,000 A RH)
NARFE 2 B8 TEmARM

ordinary shares) in issue during the year as follows: 1 19 2(576,000,0008% (=
TTAHF 1 513,402,740 &
BBOFENT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ERAR NI
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January " —HA— B 2B #/T LB 576,000,000 480,000,000
Effect of shares issued under REBREBITRD 2 ZE
placement (note 29(c)ii) (B 5E29(c)(ii)) - 33,402,740
Weighted average number of RTZA=+—RAzEdER
ordinary shares at 31 December  JI#EF5 & 576,000,000 513,402,740
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e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a) Basic earnings per share (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company is based on the profit for
the year from continuing operations of RMB7,222,000
(2007: RMB4,255,000) and the weighted average
number of 576,000,000 ordinary shares (2007:
513,402,740 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

From discontinued operation

The calculation of basic earnings per share from
discontinued operation attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company is based on the profit for
the year from discontinued operation of RMBNil (2007:
RMB9,547,000) and the weighted average number
of 576,000,000 ordinary shares (2007: 513,402,740
ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share
as there were no dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both

years presented.

—BEEASt—AILFE

13. 5 RER (&)
(a) BREARF (F)

(ir)

(i)

RAR L AERRREGR
BRELEEB 2ERER
BF - DIRBREFELE
X7 2 F A% F7,222,000
TARE(ZZEZ 4
4,255,0007T A R#) R A F
£z B BT g mRME T
#(576,000,0000% (ZZZ+
F : 513,402,7400% & 38 %)

ps
=g o
al =

KEERIEER
/NS RS S E Y TN
BERLEEBcBRERR
Ao TIRBRBEERIEER
ZERBINETARE (Z
TTHF 9,547,000t AR
M)RAFEZEEITER
& hn#E - ¥ £1576,000,000/%
Z T T ¢ 513,402,740
IR Emax) 58 -

(b) BREFRF
MR 282 M EFE AL EA

FEMARBTZERK

tERE RN EERERERT
HHE e

=R =t i A

% & 8007



102

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because this
is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

(a) Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Steel — the manufacture and trading of steel
pipes, steel sheets and other products
made of steel.

Aluminum — the design, development, manufacture
and trading of aluminum forged and
forged-spun wheels for automobiles
(discontinued on 1 July 2007).

Property - the investment and holding of
Investment property to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes.
Investments — Investment holding.
Others — the general trading of metal and

metal products and leasing of aircrafts
for rental purposes.

Further details of the discontinued operation under the
segment of aluminum are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

There were no inter-segment sales and transfers during the
current and prior years.

14.

7 B
HEERTIRAEE T FIBESH

okt

P25 - AREH DA RAEE 2N

MRS EER  RILEFARS
DHMERHESBEEZHARN -

(a) EXK2
REBBEUTNEIEZEEDE

i - HNEREEME -
A R CE b S M

0
am °

i - REt-FHE RE
MEBEAERBE
e S HERLBE
B (ER-TZTL
FEA-BRIEE

%) .

MERE — & RFH D
BRUE £ RS A
A -

BE - REEK-

Ht - cBhEBEMZ
—RESHUARER
REIELERAE -

BRI HATCRIERB 2E

—FHE IR BRENES

RARFERAFEFEL EHE 2
IR 3H & MR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 14. D EHHE (&)
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) EKoDI(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 Bz —_EZ N \F+=-_A=+—H
IEFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BECEER CRILER
Property
Steel investment Investments Others Sub-total  Aluminum Total
& NERE ke Ay gt & Eh

RMBO00  RMBO0D  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO0D  RMBI000
TRAR® TrARE TRAR® TRARE TRARE® TRARE  TRARW

Revenue e
- External sales ~$MHE 652,220 3971 - 10,996 667,193 - 667,193
Segment result NHEE 31,013 38,494 (32,264) 4,848 42,091 - 42,091
e
Interest income FEHA 4513 - 4513 :35
Unallocated operating APRUTEWA %
income and expenses RAEX (909) - (909) 2t
i
Profit from operations eyl 45,695 - 45,695 5
Finance costs AR (19,388) - (19,388) dl
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B IFEBERZ ~
attrioutable to HENBAA S
discontinued operation W - - - N
2
Profit before taxation BRAER 26,307 - 26,307
Income tax FER (15,759) - (15,759)
Profit for the year FRET 10,548 - 10,548
ASSETS BE
Segment assets AR 387413 20,05 31,187 B 663,764 - 663,764
Unallocated comporate assets ~ £AELEEE 179 - 179
Consolidated total assets relEE 663,943 - 663,943
LIABILITIES E
Segment liabilties AR (141,707) (129118  (34.283) ) (305322) - (305322

Unallocated corporate liabiities A2 E A £8fE - - -

Consolidated total liabilities GAEERE (305,322) - (305322
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 14. D EHE (&)
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) EKoDI(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued) BT N\F+_-_A=+—H
IFFE (&)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BECEER BRILER
Property
Steel investment Investments Others Sub-total  Aluminum Total
#  DERE k% 2t gt i i

RMBO00  RMBO0D  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO0D  RMBI000
TRAR® TrARE TRAR® TRARE TRARE® TRARE  TRARW

Other information: EfER
Capital expenditure ERFR 12958 194,604 - - 7562 - 7562

Depreciation for property; % BEREE

plant and equipment bl 10,406 - 2 2276 12,684 - 12,684
Amortisation of prepaid RRRENE

lease payments b i w - - - m - m
Valuation gain on CIEYS

investment property BN - 36,655 - - 36,655 - 36,655
Write down of inventories HiEE 34,821 - - - 34,821 - 34,821

Impairment loss on trade B SRS R At E

and other receivables YR FiEsE - - - 667 667 - 667
Impairment loss on HESREEY
avallable-forsale BEEE

financial assets -

13,956 - 13,956 - 13,956

Net loss on derivative EEMTIAY
finandial instrument EiEE 386 - - - 386 - 386
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007

14. 7 BMHE ()
(@) ¥H5EH ()

HE-_TZ+HF+-_A=+—H

IEFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BELEEE BHIEEH
Property
Steel investment  Investments Others  Sub-total ~ Aluminum Total
Ho MERE A £t NGt i &5
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
FIARE FTTARE FRARE TIARE FRARE FiARE FrARE
Revenue W
- External sales -HHMEE 1,200,977 - - 59448 1260425 61478 1321903
Segment result AHEE 25517 4 (7,966) 6,361 23,956 4174 28130
Interest income FIBWA 1837 70 1,907
Unallocated operating income AOREERA
and expenses REX 1823 - 1823
Profit from operations TEEF 27,616 4,244 31,860
Finance costs RERA (19233) (259  (21825)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BRFEREN
attributable to discontinued HERBAR
operation Wiz - 8,715 8,715
Profit before taxation R ATRH 8,383 10,367 18,750
Income tax it (3,106) 1,267 (1,839
Profit for the year EMET 5217 11634 16911
ASSETS B
Seqment assets AHEE 733975 199590 15887 47350 996,804 - 996,804
Unallocated corporate assets FARLEEE 16,403 - 16403
Consolidated total assets GrlEE 1,013,207 - 1,013,207
LIABILITIES g
Segment liabilities PR (472,238 (162,769) (849) (439  (640,48) - (640,48)
Unallocated corporate liabilities FARLEEE - - -
Consolidated total liabilities aleR (640,248) - (640,48)

e
FH
57
=
af
w
>
|
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #ZEZE—ZZE)/N\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Continued)

14. /'\ﬁl;i&ﬂ: (nﬁ)

(a)

%o (&)

HE-_TZ+HF+-_A=+—H
HFE(E)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BEEEEH BRIEER
Property
Steel investment  Investments Others  Sub-total  Aluminum Total
o OMERE RE Bt et i =t

RMBO00  RMB'000
TIARE TTARE

RMB'000

RMB'O0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000

TRARE TRARE TTARE THARE TRARE

Other information: EfEH -
Capital expenditure EREY 2977 -
Depreciation for property nE - BERRE

plant and equipment IE 10,567 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease BHRERE

payments it i 22 -
Impairment loss on trade and BARUIE REM

other receivables UGB REE B 638 -

Impairment loss on available-forsale A HELBEE
financial assets LREBE 720 -

Geographical segments

The Group participates in five principal economic
environments: Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Vietnam
and other countries.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets and capital
expenditure are based on the geographical location of assets.

56

(b)

11,098 34,078 - 34,078

1,99 12,619 6,990 19,609

- 222 - 222
920 1,558 - 1,558
- 720 - 720

iﬂ_’, =) /'\ﬁ

AEEBERE TEAML- &
E BB REMERATREHE
RIBEE X -

iR D MERERE - 28K
SR BEPAEEEID - D H
EREAFXIZEEMEIR S

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 14. 7 B | = (&)
(b) Geographical segments (Continued) (b) &% (&)
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Consolidated
REEEXS BRILER &a
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

SRR\ ZFTLE CET0\F ZFTLF CER\F TR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TRAR® FTRARE TrARE FTIARE FTRAR® TIARE

(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E=75)) (m=5) (i =5)
Revenue from external RENREFE
customers palE:
Hong Kong BE - - - - - -
Mainland China R Ay 631,556 1,206,048 - - 631556 1,206,048
Taiwan ag 13,320 52,060 - 61478 13320 113538
Vietnam ilgea] 2317 2317 - - 2,317 2317 )::
Other countries EfEIx - - - - - - T
=
af
667,193 1,260,425 - 61478 667,193 1,321,903 E
>
Carrying amount of THEEZ =
segment assets REE N
Hong Kong BB 9,359 46,662 - - 9,359 46,662 &
Mainland China Rl 363,405 714,679 - - 363405 714,679 gl
Taiwan B} 245105 231,285 - - 245105 231,285 =
Vietnam il 24,067 20,581 - - 24,067 20,581
Other countries HEER 22,007 - = - 22,007 -
663,943 1,013,207 - - 663943 1,013,207
Capital expenditure EREEZ
incurred during the year ~ EXREX
Hong Kong BE - - - - - -
Mainland China HE R 3,883 11,183 - - 3,843 11,183
Taiwan B 194,604 11,098 - - 194,604 11,098
Vietnam il 9,115 11,797 - - 9,115 11,797
Other countries HEER - - - - - -

207,562 34,078 - - 207,562 34,078




Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

15. FIXED ASSETS

15. B EEE

(a) The Group (a) &&
Furniture,
Building fixtures
frechold ~ andfactory Construction  Leasehold  andoffice  Plantand Motor Investment Total
land premises  in progress improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles Aircrafts ~ Sub-total property ~fixed assets
i £ER
KARELH BFREBE  AEIR BENEEE BOTRE  HERRE AE it it RENE BEREEST
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TRARE  FTnARE TFnAR® TnAR® TrAR® TrAR% TrAR% TFrAR% TnARE TrARE TrARE
Cost or valuation HARE
At 1 January 2007 RZZELE-F-A 14,538 51,762 2,059 19,998 5,607 180,170 1,637 14,707 290,478 - 290,478
Additions hE - - 17,035 501 1,541 3731 17 11,09 34,078 - 34,078
Transfers k] - - (7798) - - 7798 - - - - -
Disposals HE - - - - ®) (10,426) - - (10,434) - (10,434)
Disposal of subsidiaries BRILEBEREZ
attibutable to discontinued ~ HEK B2 7
operation (note 31) (Hi31) (14,538) (9,555) 3 (17,448) (758) (85,469) (201) - (128,192) - (128,192)
Exchange adjustments ERRE - 160 - 709 61 2531 16 %7) 2510 - 2510
At 31 December 2007 RZEEtE+-A=1-8 - 42,367 1073 3,760 6,443 98,335 1,624 24,838 188,440 - 188,440
Representing &
Cost A - 4,361 1,073 3,760 6,443 98,335 1,624 24,838 188,440 - 188,440
Valuation - 2007 ffE--FTtE - - - - - - - - - - -
- 4,361 1,073 3,760 6,443 98,335 1,624 24,838 188,440 - 188,440
At 1 January 2008 RZZTNE-A-A - 42361 1,013 3,760 6,443 98,335 1,624 24,838 188,440 - 188,440
Additions HE - - 10,224 - 201 1313 1220 - 12,958 194,604 207,562
Transfers £+ - - (5,261) - 1,147 4114 - - - - -
Disposals i - - - - m (3,886) (641) - (4,604) - (4,604)
Fair value adjustments LTERE - - - - - - - - - 36,655 36,655
Exchange adjustments ExiE - - (1,244) O] (164) (468) (22) (1,608) (3515) (15,670) (19,185)
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\E+ZA=1-8 - 42,367 14,792 3,751 1,550 99,408 2181 23,230 193,219 215,589 408,868
Representing &
Cost i - 42,367 14,792 3751 7,50 99,408 2,181 B30 193279 - 19321
Valuation - 2008 (E-—FT\F - - - - - - - - - M5E89 215589
- 42,367 14,792 3751 1,550 99,408 2,181 3230 193,279 215,589 408,868
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15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15. Bl €& & (&)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) &&£HE (&)
Furniture,
Building fixtures
frechold ~ andfactory Construction  Leasehold  andoffice  Plantand Motor Investment Total

land premises  in progress improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles Aircrafts — Sub-total property ~fixed assets

i £ER
XA$ELH BFREE  GRIE HENEEE BOTRE  HERRE HE it Mt RENE BREEST
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TRARE  TnARE TFnAR® TnAR® ToAR® TRAR% TrAR% TrAR% TnARE TrARE TrARE

Accumulated ZirirE

depreciation
At 1 January 2007 W=F5+5-F-B - 14893 - 3492 2736 58,653 810 209 82,682 - 82,682
Charge for the year TEEAR - 225 - 2226 831 12,149 18 1,9% 19,609 - 19,609
Written back on disposals i EERE - - - - 1) (8857) - - (8.864) - (8,864)

Disposal of subsidiaries BRILEBEREZ

atirioutable to discontinued £ EFE R E 109
operation (note 31) (H3E31) - (872) - (3559) (w1338 (95) - (18360) - (18360)
Exchange adjustments EifE - (160) - (730) (78) (2,53) (19 (219 (3,731) - (3.737)
At31December 2007and ~ K=EF+ETZA=+-AR M
at 1 lanuary 2008 K-FENE-A-A - 16,086 - 1429 3,035 46,023 882 3875 71330 - 71,330 E;
Charge for the year REEMR - 1,905 - 360 787 7078 m 220 12,684 - 12,684 ;g
Written back on disposals ~ HEERE - - - - (70) (3,486) (577) - (4133) - (@133) a
Exchange adjustments ERiE - - - ©) @) (36) @ (29 (361) - (361) =
>
At 31 December 2008 KZZEN\§+ZA=+-R - 17,991 - 1,780 3730 49579 580 5,860 79520 - 79,520 ol
Net hook value EEFE S
At 31 December 2008 R=ZEN\E+=A=+-R - 4376 14,792 197 3820 49,829 1,601 17370 113759 215,589 329,348 &
_FH
At 31 December 2007 R-EEtE+ZA=+-R - 26,81 11,073 2331 3408 52312 0 20,963 117,10 - 117,110 S
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15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

15. BIE & & (&)

(b) The Company (b) &AQF
Furniture
Leasehold and Total
improvements fixtures fixed assets
HEMELE GRAREE BTEEAGF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FTARE FTTARE FIAR®
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2007 RZZZE+F—A—H 169 116 285
Additions NE - 3 3
Exchange adjustments B 5 % (1) @) (18)
At 31 December 2007 RZFZLF+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2008 kZZENE—A—H 158 112 270
Exchange adjustments B K % 9 )] (16)
At 31 December 2008 RZZZNF+_A=+—H 149 105 254
Accumulated depreciation ~ RiHTE
At 1 January 2007 RZZET+F—H—H 136 91 227
Charge for the year REE R 32 24 56
Exchange adjustments B K % (10) (7) (17)
At 31 December 2007 RZZEZ+F+-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2008 RZZEENF—H—H 158 108 266
Charge for the year REE R - 2 2
Exchange adjustments [Nk 9) (7) (16)
At 31 December 2008 RZZZENF+_A=+—H 149 103 252
Net book value R E A
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+-A=1t—H - 2 2
At 31 December 2007 RZZZLF+-A=1t—H - 4 4
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15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15.BEEE (§)

(c) The investment property of the Group carried at fair
value were revalued as at 31 December 2008 on an open
market value basis calculated by reference to recent market
transactions in comparable properties and to net rental
income allowing for reversionary income potential. The
valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors,;Z a8 B E (H{ERTE 75 FT, being a member of the
Republic of China Association of Real Estate Appraisers who
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant location and
category of property being valued.

(c)

REBEZATEIR ZIREWE
ERZEENF+=ZA=1+—H
BARMELEEN  FEAH
MEDZEALRYE 2T
BREGRFAAEGEEE2HAS
WA FRE - BAMESRELAE
BMAT)Z B E ML (ER E AT E
T HAPERBTEEMERD
Ngres -  AEEECEHXAE
B REEYZEMERBEERE
Bz KB 3 2 3 B (B A B o

(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as (d) ZEYWERABEINOT :
follows:
The Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
RMB’ 000 RMB"000
FrRARY Frx AR
In PRC: R E
— medium-term leases — R EfFA 49 24,376 26,281
In Taiwan: ReE:
— freehold — K AEERE 215,589 -
239,965 26,281
Representing: (A
Building and factory premises RARSIIR 2 BFREFE
carried at cost 24,376 26,281
Investment property carried BRATEINRZIREYE
at fair value 215,589 -

239,965 26,281

RN =t i A S

% £ 8007
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15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15.BEEE (&)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out properties and aircrafts under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
five years, with an option to renew the lease after that date
at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment property.

At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as

(e) REKLANVHBEZEETEE

AEBERBLEROEEDER
R bAHE 2 FHER LA
FRE—ZRF YA RBENE
mEEN ENABHERMAE
k- ERAEEDTBEXREM

PR RIBA 2 A RE ABRERE
X AREYERELD  TIARF
BEAGE INBERREME
KAZBEARR

R-EEZN\FE+-_A=+—8"
RIBT ARG SR mER 2

follows: ARZEHESBBOT :
The Group
rEH

2008 2007
—BENF —EFLHF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARY TREARE
Within 1 year —FR 15,962 4,452
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 30,705 3,442

46,667 7,894
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15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15. B E&EE (&)
(f) Prepaid lease payments () BERNHEERE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETEF
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000

FRAR® TTARE

The Group’s prepaid lease REBZENHEE
payments comprise: FIABIE
Land in the PRC: IR ELZ T3
Medium term lease FRHEAE 4 8,194 8,416
Analysed for reporting purpose as: EHM O
Current assets mENEE 222 222
Non-current assets EMENEE 7,972 8,194
8,194 8,416 e
F
The amortisation change for the year is included in AEEzBIETHDFARE N e
L . . . . s¢ P =
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income SERZMTHAXIA - oy
statement. i
5
(g) At 31 December 2008, the following fixed assets of the (9) R=FEZNF+-_A=+—81" -
Group were pledged to certain banks for banking facilities AT AKEREEECRAKE =
granted to the Group as follows (note 34): BRZBITREMERTE TR ®
17 (MYaE34) - E
The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARY FTARKE
Building and factory premises BFREE 24,376 26,281
Construction in progress EREITE 7,656 8,395
Plant and machinery H2E R 34,816 40,701
Investment property (note) KA WE (M) 153,976 -
Prepaid lease payments AT EFRIE 8,194 8,416
229,018 83,793
Note: The pledged amount of the investment property is limited to 120% izt : REVEZEMRSEULEEE

of the amount of banking facilities granted to the Group. B2 RITIEETEN120% BR -
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16. GOODWILL 16. B &
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ZETLF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FRARY FTARE
At 1 January m—A—H = 4,719
Disposal of subsidiaries attributable to ERIEEBEG 2
discontinued operation (note 31) HEME A A (FE31) = (4,719)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—A”H = -

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU")
identified according to the business segment. The goodwill at
1 January 2007 was entirely related to the business segment of
aluminum wheels and automobile spare parts. Upon the disposal
of Fullchamp on 1 July 2007 as set out in note 31, the Group had
derecognised the goodwill during the prior year.

B TIARIE M5 0 B0 2 B = Pt Al
ZREBNRSELEV - N _FTF
tFE-A-RZEERZEMANER
WERTETHZEB OB N _F
ZEELA-HHEER (RME3)
% AEECREFRUIBERARE -

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B A Rl 2 fE =
The Company

VNN
2008 2007
“EENF  C—EELF
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
FTRARE FRARE
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - A 215,569 124,378
Less: Impairment loss (note (c)) R EEE (i) (14,363) -
201,206 124,378
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (a)) U B BB A Rl R E (BT 55(a)) 9,974 75,454
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (note (b)) & : RIRE A (B 5E (b)) (2,833) (2,384)

7,141 73,070




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. A B AT 2= (&)
Notes: 5T
(@)  Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable (a) MEWHBRARRBAEER €5 KA
on demand. REREE -
(b)  Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (b) RIREEES

The Company

PN

2008 2007

—EEN\E ZETLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

FRARY FrAREE

At 1 January R—HA—H 2,384 2,091

Impairment losses recognised ERRZAEEEE 597 447

Effect on exchange difference HEN =R 22 (148) (154)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,833 2,384
(0 The directors consider that in light of recurring operating loss of certain (O EFRR ENETHWBRARBEERS e
subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of these subsidiaries has been EEEE ZEWB ARz E S5 ]
reduced to the estimated net realisable value of their identifiable net BREZEAHANFEEZGFAIER 1
assets. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately RMB14,363,000 FE - At - EDRIBRALRBRHER =
(2007: RMBNil) and RMB597,000 (2007: RMB447,000) in respect of Bl RE R BB A R RIERERL af
the Company’s investments in subsidiaries and the amounts due from 14,363,000 AR (ZZZTLF : Tt i
subsidiaries were recognised respectively. AR) 597,000t AR (ZZTT £ ™
F 1 447,0007T AR ) 2R B2 - al
N
3
(d)  The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which d TXEINHEREBRMEE EEXE o
principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of EEXNEEHEWNBARINFS B il
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. SEHAEN  FEZROERNSEE S

B o
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

17. R B AR 2 Em (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERELH
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group's  Heldby Held by
incorporation issued and effective  the a
Name of company and operation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
AL R/ MR BRTRMAR A58z mALNE H-BHE
REELE RAGFE EREE KE 1LRBE IEER
Bamian Investments Pte. Singapore/ 16,829,670 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited (“Bamian”) Hong Kong ordinary shares of REER
BFRERRAR(EM) g/ &R SGD1 each
16,829,670k 5 REE
IR TT 2 & AR
Guangzhou Mayer* PRC Registered capital 81.4% - 81.40%  Manufacture and trading of
EMED i RMB200,000,000 steel pipes, steel sheets and
HMER other products made of steel
200,000,007 A K% REREERE WAR
Hi A m
Vietnam Mayer (note) Vietnam 3,500,000 40.7% - 50% Manufacture and trading of
HmEER (M) il ordinary shares of steel pipes, steel sheets and
USD1 each other products made of steel
3,500,000 5 i REREEHE HAR
ABIET SRR Bt EEm
ROC Advance Limited ("ROC") British Virgin Islands/ 1,454,000 100% 100% - Leasing of aircrafts
BersRAR(HBE) The Republic of China ~ ordinary shares of and provision of
RERuES/ USD1 each consultancy service
hERE 1,454,000 B R EE Mgt & RIRHERRT
[EZWA 35
Sunbeam Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ 7,687,000 100% 100% - Investment holding
("Sunbeam”) Hong Kong ordinary shares of REER
MEEEERAR (Ft]) ARRABE /B USD1 each
7,687,000 B REE

E a3l
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

17. Mt

—EE)\F+-A=+—HIFE

BArRzEs (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERELH
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group's  Heldby Held by
incorporation issued and effective  the a
Name of company and operation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
RAER R/ MR BRARAR  A5Ez AXLAF A-HHE
REZWH kAztE EBREE ®F ARARE IEXH
ZREEROERAT The Republic of China 82,891,718 100% - 100%  Property investment
FERE ordinary shares of MERE
NTD1 each
82,891, 718RBREE
1R Rk
Vansen International Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 100% 100% - General trading
EHERERAR PRC ordinary share of —%E5 W
ABRANE/TE USD1 each o
1REREE [
E3PA -3l =
at
Top Force International Limited British Virgin Islands/ 3,067,000 100% 100% - Investment holding ?;
BNERBRAF Hong Kong ordinary shares of REER |
AERAES/EE USD1 each .
3,067,000 &% 3
ERE e I
B
Advance Century Development British Virgin Islands/ 2,140,000 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong ordinary shares of REER
AtEERERLH ABRAHE/FE USD1 each
2,140,000 5%
BEIETZEER

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign equity joint-venture

enterprise.

REBFBEEZEAMZHIIRERLED
.,

Note: The Group holds 50% equity interests of Vietnam Mayer and nominated MicE . AEEFEBEED Z50%R A=
3 out of 5 directors in the board of directors of Vietnam Mayer, which WEREHEETEFEPAUES
has the power to control the strategic financial and operating policies ZHP=M HEREHEEERY
of Vietnam Mayer. As a result, Vietnam Mayer is accounted for as a BSOS RASEBUR - AL B
subsidiary of the Company. EREARRWBRRZHRNALR °
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18. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF

19.

PROPERTY

At balance sheet date, the Group has paid deposit in the amount of
RMBNiIl (2007: RMB192,142,000) to the vendor for the acquisition
of a property situated in Taiwan for a total consideration of
NTD880,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB197,296,000).
The acquisition was completed on 5 February 2008 and the
property is accounted for as an investment property of the Group
as at 31 December 2008.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19.

18. WM R 2ENERE

REER ASERKE —BURE
EBIMERBEAINZESATITA
REE(ZFZ+H4 192,142,000t AR
#) - 48K {8 A880,000,0007T ¥ & 1
(4% 1 #9197,296,0007T ARKE) - 3%
WHBER-_ZZENF_AABZEMX
ZMER—_ZTTN\F+-_A=1+—8
A AIRSIVEREB 2R E W

AHEESREE
The Group
# 4 E
2008 2007
—EENF  -ETLF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARY TREARE

Unlisted securities, at cost EETES KA
— Club debentures —EMES 1,294 1,294
— Equity securities — R E 35,074 -
36,368 1,294
Less: impairment o ORE (15,250) (1,294)
Effect on exchange difference HEeRZR2 28 253 -
21,371 -

The above unlisted investments represent investment in unlisted
equity securities and debentures issued by private entities
incorporated in PRC, Taiwan and British Virgin Islands. They
are measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet
date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

The directors consider that in light of recurring operating loss of
investee companies, the recoverable amount of these investee
companies has been reduced to the estimated net realisable
value of their identifiable net assets. Accordingly, impairment
loss of RMB 13,956,000 (2007: RMBNIil) in respect of the costs of
investments was recognised.

FOELFTRERKKRENERH -
BERABEZBESEMK T ZAA
aﬁaﬁﬁgﬁfﬁzgfimﬂx$ % K &R
cHBRENSHEE B AR £
BEFE  RAAAGEAFEZIAE
HEBREE MARREETAARE
ARG ERBIRE AT E-

EERE ERNABRRBERSES
BEE ZEARERR 2 KESE
EREEHEABNFEEZGEA
I FE - At E,?Mxéf}i$6€w
13,956,000 ARB (ZEZLF T
TTARME) 2 RMEEE -
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)
The cost of club debentures was fully impaired in prior years as the

management of the Company considered that the recovery of this
amount was remote.

19. 7HESRHEE (&)

GAEFZKAERANEFERER
B RASARBIEEERSWE L
TRIEEEMN -

INVENTORIES 20. &
The Group
TEE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARY FTARY
Raw materials AR 65,573 124,405
Finished goods BIRK o 24,402 44,809
89,975 169,214
Note: BT

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as follows:

EERAAXZEFESEINTMOT

2008 2007

—EZN\F TR

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FRARY FRAREE

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZIREE 568,517 1,241,843
Write down of inventories WRFE 34,821 -
603,338 1,241,843

The write down of inventories made during the year arose due to a
decrease in the estimated net realisable value of the raw materials
and finished goods based on the latest market transactions for
similar products.

FAMBRETE ERAREBHEEER
ZERHMERXS R REKGZ
AT R FECERD -

RN =t i A S

% £ 8007
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1. EFRIRAR R EMmEWR
18
The Group The Company
FEH AL
2008 2007 2008 2007

ZET)N\F ZE2TEF ZZT)N\F —ZTTLF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FrARYE FTTAR®E FTRAR®E FTIARE

Trade debtors and bills receivables & 5 & U ik 5% &

(note (a)) R EIE
(Mt3EG@@) 118,448 374,458 - -
Less: allowance for doubtful debts & : RIKE #
(note (b)) (B 5E(b)) (1,525) (920) - -
120
116,923 373,538 - -
% Other receivables oAt e W SR IE 957 - 47 -
= Less: allowance for doubtful B RIS
g debts (note (b)) GEID) (62) - - -
:
< 895 - 47 -
K
E Amount due from a director FEME FFIR
o (note (d)) (Bt 3E(d)) 17 - 17 -
§ Amount due from a related FEW A=
:lg company (note (e)) UNEIE QL]
> (Bt E(e)) 7,025 6,473 - -
=
Loan and receivables BN R IE 124,860 380,011 64 -
Prepayments and deposits FENFRIERES 1,339 16,683 176 255
126,199 396,694 240 255
All of the trade and other receivables (including amounts due from AR —FRWREMEE S EW
a director and a related company) are expected to be recovered MR R E A EW IR (BEE N — R E

within one year. ERh—HEREQBZRIE) -
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Age analysis

(b)

Trade debtors and bills receivables are net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB1,525,000 (2007: RMB920,000) with
the following age analysis as of the balance sheet date:

21. B 5 FE WUk 50 R H 2 B I RK
15 (%)
(a) 1Rk HT

REEH - B5EIIRRLER
ERMR RIRHEEE1,525,0007T A
R (ZZZT -t :920,0007T A

R¥) 2RI DITAAT
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TRARYE FTARE
Current — 30 days BIEZ=30H 39,702 105,406
31 -60 days 31£260H 15,412 94,652
61 —90 days 61£E90H 22,897 58,525
91 - 180 days 91£180H 37,110 113,758
Over 180 days 180 A £ 1,802 1,197
116,923 373,538

Trade debtors are due within 30-180 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 30(a).

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivables and
other receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivables and other receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note 2(k)).

(b)

B 5 FEWIR KA 2 8 B #11£ #930
Z180HNEHAZ N - BEASHE
BEEHR ZE— P BENM
30(a) °

EZRWIRRARERREEUARA
tb P& W SR TR 2 R B

B 5 U M IR R IR AR
& WO TR 2 TR 5 1R A B A R
RLErc BRIFAKEREEKREAE
BRI e T E IR BRI
BEES B Z AR YOR R M
(RPFFFE2()) ©

—_
N
—_

=R = i A

% £ 8007
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivables and
other receivables (Continued)

21. B 5 FEWUIR R H b BB WK

5 (#R)
(b) H 5 MR R FE U B8 DA R KL
1t 0 2 LR ()

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts: RIREEEE
The Group
AEE

2008 2007
—EENE —ETEF
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
FrARY FrARE
At 1 January n—HA—H 920 10,495
Impairment loss recognised BRRBREEE 667 1,558
Uncollectible amounts written off B i 8E T A Uk Bl Fk08 = (11,133)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 1,587 920

At 31 December 2008, trade debtors and bills receivables
and other receivables of RMB1,587,000 (2007: RMB920,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. These
individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed that
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
RMB667,000 (2007: RMB1,558,000) were recognised. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The factors which the Group considered in determining
whether these trade debtors were individually impaired
include, for example, the following:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e  receivables that have been outstanding for a certain
period;

WN-ZEZENE+=-_R=+—H K&
B2 E 5 REKIRER R ERERIARE
ftb Ji& Uz 3K 781,587,000t A R (= F
T4 : 920,000 A R ) B 18 Bl
WHEE BHIERE - LS @R HIE R
B2z ERUHIES KAV B E#H 2 &
FrBEBE TG EEHEAYE
MR IE - Al B ERERRE
B 15667,000L AR (ZZ2 2+ F -
1,558,0007T AR - AEB W EIFH
BEZEESR 2 A MEHR -

AEEREEZFE HRKIERESR

EERRERMEZERE AR

o BEBABRERMBINE

o  RUFIEER—ERERAKRESR:
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. E 5 FE W R FX & H it FE YLK

15 (&)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivables and (b) ESEWRERRREREEUARE
other receivables (Continued) fib FE WL FR B 2 BB ()
e the Group granting to the debtor, for economic or o AEERHEGEBAZHMBEHE
legal reasons relating to the debtor's financial difficulty, HEBE 2 BESOREESR
a concession that the Group would not otherwise ETEBA-—BEREELER
consider; MIERTEEERZEL
e it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter into o BRAFBEKENETEM
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; BT e
e observable data indicating that there is a measurable o  AERZENBEINEWIIA
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the BEXERAR®E - HAsT
debtor since their initial recognition, although the RAREeRELBRAIFTEZ
decrease cannot yet be identified including: W BE AR B
BRIE - BIE
e
—  adverse changes in the payment status of debtors - AREBEEBAZSFR ‘?5
in the Group; S IR AN T ]
af
-~ economic conditions that correlate with defaults - BHEXAREEZSEW ?;
on the trade receivables in the Group. WRRE 2 EEAR o ol

N
o
®
_FH
B
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. E 5 FE W R 57X & H it FE YL =X

15 (£8)
() Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired () YEBEZESERIKRRREK

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ZETLF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARY FLTARE
124
Neither past due nor impaired ~ BE#% #1 Hi 75 KR (B 115,121 353,781
8 Y
S Past due but not impaired ) HR B I MR (E
‘é Less than 1 month past due LR —EA 1,800 8,273
& 1 to 3 months past due wE—Z=={AA 2 11,484
3
=
=
< 1,802 19,757
B
2
= 116,923 373,538
(7]
g
% Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate B #8180 B 71 R ORL (B < FEGRIR S
g to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent KRBT BIE R 4Lk 2 B o
g‘ history of default.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

L

AR A IR E (a2 R S
[F) 2 & 5 MR R iR 2
MREDHTLAT -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

(d) The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on

demand.

(d)

BB HER TR E 2 BUYGRIE T
BRETEAREEBRIFEEL
BRZBUER - RIELHR EF
EBHRfE ANEEERYELR
EREHRARGHRIDER DA
2D RBARZEESRE
HRERE AKRBYES[HEA
R A R CIE iR i

BERFARERN 28 NRER

ZREFEE -
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. E 5 FE W R 57X & H it FE YL =X

15 ()

(e) The amount due from a related company amounted to (e) B—FHABELR (EHE%L
RMB7,025,000 (2007: RMB6,473,000), in which Mr. Huang EREARIHBERER) KIE
Chun-fa has beneficial interest, is unsecured, interest-free and %7,025000t AR (Z2 T+
repayable within the next twelve months from the balance F 16,473,000 ARE) -+ TR
sheet date. The maximum amount outstanding during the BB WANRGEERARTZ
year amounted to RMB7,025,000 (2007: RMB6,473,000). KR+ —EARNBEE - RERNK

BERBSERS A7,0250007T
AR (ZZT L4 6,473,000

TAREE) o
No provision for the amount due has been made in the B B s I R B 5% P MR TE 1
financial statements. M o
125
22. TRADING SECURITIES 22. X5 HH
The Group
EE u
2008 2007 s
—EENF ZETLF =
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 at
FTRARE  TLARE s
ol
Listed securities: LEWmES: o
— Equity securities —RAE 5 §
- Hong Kong —&8 - 11,677 +y
— United States of America — X — 2,142 i
— Investment fund —REES
— United States of America —%H - 1,814
Market value of listed securities thEEZTE = 15,633
23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 23. EEARITER
Pledged bank deposits are pledged to secure the Group’s banking EEBRITERDAEREE 2 R1T
facilities (see note 34). The pledged bank deposits carry fixed FEEZBE (RK34) - REZ-Z
interest rates ranging from 0.10% to 0.80% (2007: 1.15% to ZENEFEFT_A=T—HILFE 2K
3.80%) for the year ended 31 December 2008. IR 1TIFIZ0.10%£0.80% (=T F

+ 4 1.15%%£3.80%) 2 & F M =5t
B o
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. RERBFAESEEEH
The Group The Company
AEE BN
2008 2007 2008 2007

—2EN\F ZTTLF —TT/N\F ZTTLF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TRAR® FTTARE TFTRAR®E TLARE

Deposits with banks RITER 25,357 1,218 1,271 1,218
Cash at bank and on hand RO NFHRES 53,036 66,243 3,725 9,768

Cash and cash equivalents inthe  éREEBEBER

consolidated balance sheet and KEREIRE R
the consolidated cash flow ER2BEER
126 statement Be%EEA 78,393 67,461 4,996 10,986
- 25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B BENIRAREMENSRK
.
§_ The Group The Company
& rEE P NG|
3 2008 2007 2008 2007
< —ET\F —BELE —BTN\F —TTLF
E RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB"000
E FrARYE FTTAR®E FTRAR®E FTITARE
gn’
% Trade payables Z 5 FETIRK 6,697 144,626 = -
T Other payables (note (a)) Hith e F00E
:% (M EE@)) 23,456 181,852 5,073 1,090
= Dividend payables FE B 2. 1,079 - 1,058 -
Amount due to a director FENEERIE
(note (b)) (B (b)) 162 - = -
Amount due to minority JER DB R
shareholder (note (b)) K38 (M 5Eb)) 152 - = -
Amount due to ultimate JE T B AR AR
holding company (note (b)) A aFIE (b)) 21,285 - 24,719 -

Financial liabilities measured at 1% B $5 A 7~

amortised cost TRz emaE 52,831 326,478 30,850 1,090
Derivative financial instrument T4 4@ T A 386 - = -

53,217 326,478 30,850 1,090
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due to
related parties) are expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

The following is an age analysis of trade payables as at the balance

25. EZENIRAREMENSR
5 (&)
FT 7 B 5 HE IR 3R EL A A 308 (2
RN REA L HIE) TR —
FEREERABEREE -

BHREMERNGEE B 2Rk 0

sheet date: T
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENEF —EELF
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
FrRARY FHARY
Current — 30 days BIERZ=30H 2,195 61,771
— 60 days 31£260H 1,539 19,444
—90 days 61290H 862 18,145
91 - 180 days 912180H 1,847 45,106
Over 180 days 180H M £ 254 160
6,697 144,626

Note: BiaE -

(@ Included in other payables as at 31 December 2007 amounting to (@) R-EZLF+_A=+—BZEME
RMB162,517,000 was the partial payment made to the vendor by FRIAFR B IEAE162,517,0007T AR
issuing post-dated bills with due date on 5 February 2008 relating to the ZHE W RWE - EYENER
acquisition of a property situated in Taiwan (note 18). B -TTN\F-_ARAHHZEHE

B E 7 2 #3657 E (EE18) »

(b)  The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. (b) EEFBAHERF RERERBERE

B -

e
FH
57
=
af
@
>
|

% £ 8007
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26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. RITEE
The Group The Company
AEE ARQH
2008 2007 2008 2007

—2EN\F ZTTLF —TT/N\F ZTTLF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TRAR® FTTARE TFTRAR®E TLARE

Bank loans RITER 244,141 311,402 6,866 -
Secured (note (a)) BEF (@) 222,605 141,668 6,866 -
Unsecured (note (b)) AR (P 3Eb)) 21,536 169,734 - -
244,141 311,402 6,866 -
128

At 31 December 2008, the bank borrowings are repayable as RZEZENF+ZA=+—0H " RIT
follows: EEZEFHAWT

The Group The Company

KEH KAF]
2008 2007 2008 2007

—ER\F “FFLE -BENF -“TELHF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000
FRARE FRARY FAAR® FAARE

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Within 1 year or on demand —FANIREK 139,458 311,402 6,866 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFTNHN 12,885 - = -
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFA 41,294 - - -
After 5 years hF& 50,504 - = -
104,683 - - -
244,141 311,402 6,866 -
All of the non-current bearing borrowings are carried at amortised FTBEIEmBNET B8 BB K AR -
cost. None of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings is EEMEERB A EEEEN —FRN

expected to be settled within one year. B o
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with finance
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 3(b). As at 31 December 2008, none of the covenants relating
to drawn down facilities had been breached.

Note:

(@)  The secured bank borrowings comprise:

(0]

(i)

(iii)

approximately RMB118,166,000 (equivalent to approximately
NTD567,286,000) (2007: RMBNil) from a bank is bearing interest
ranging from 2.3% to 2.4% per annum and secured by an
investment property with carrying amount of approximately
RMB215,589,000, bank deposit with carrying amount of
approximately RMB1,458,000 (equivalent to approximately
NTD7,000,000) and guarantee given by the Company and a
director of the Company, Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing and repayable by
monthly installment upto 5 February 2015.

approximately RMB6,866,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD1,000,000) (2007: RMBNil) from a bank is bearing interest rate
at 4.0% per annum and secured by a bank deposit with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,120,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD600,000) and guarantee given by the Company
and certain subsidiaries, and repayable on 24 April 2009.

approximately RMB97,573,000 (equivalent to approximately
UsD14,276,000) (2007: approximately RMB135,064,000) from
banks are bearing interest ranging from 2.3% to 6.0% per annum
(2007: 5.3% to 6.7%) and repayable within one year and secured
by the following:

- Bank deposits with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMBNil (2007: approximately
RMB46,537,000);

- Prepaid lease payments with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB8,194,000 (2007: approximately
RMB8,416,000);

- Building and factory premises with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB24,376,000 (2007:
approximately RMB26,281,000);

- Plant and machinery with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB34,816,000 (2007: approximately
RMB40,701,000);

- Guarantee given by the Company;

26. RITEE (&)

AEERARITEEDEATARANE
METEERERBBLZAROR
RSB EEERBENE -
FAREERZERY CYRNE
ERANEERBNRER - ASET
HERAKENMBRARAETZE
R - ARERPESREREENF
BERME30) - R=FFNF+ A
=t—B AREHBERZECY
REENBERL -

GEE
(@) HEABTEEDE

(i) 118,166,000 A R # (FHE R4
567,286,000 & ) (ZE=F
+tF TTARE) ZEBEHR—
FRITRME  RFFNEK23%E
24%FH B WH —HIREELD
215,589,000t A R 2 IR E W)
¥ . R 491,458,0007C A R #
(}E FA 497,000,000 & ) 2
RITFR * ARARRBRARGEE
HREE S R R
EEZEER-_Z—RAF_AH
HATo S RER -

(i) #96,866,0007T A R (B8 R4
1,000,000 70) (ZEZ+F &
TARE) ZEEH—MRITR
o R F R EA0% B - W AhAA
IR E (B 474,120,000 AR (10
A #J600,000F 7T) Z SRITFK
UEARRRETHEBRRRE
ZHEREER - AEREARZT
TAEMA=-+MBEE -

(i) #997,573,0007T A R (FHE R4
14,276,000%7T) (ZTT+F : 4
135,064,000t A R¥) 25 &M
ZERITRE  RFEMNE23%E
6.0% (ZZTZT+F :53%%6.7%)
TR AR—FREE  WHUT
8 B {EHE

- BIEAEEHNTSTARE(Z
T T F 1 #)46,537,0007T
ARE) ZRITHFER

—  #IRTE48,194,0007T
ARE(ZZZ+F: 4
8,416,000t A R¥) 2 TS
TAEE

—  KIRM{E#24,376,0007T
ARB(ZZEZLF 4
26,281,000C AR ) 218
FRBE

— KR {E#34,816,0007T
ARB(ZZEZLF 4
40,701,000 A R #8) Z #
B

- AARHEHZER

e
FH
57
=
af
@
>
al

% £ 8007
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. 8RITIEE (&)

Note: (Continued)

(iv)  approximately RMB6,604,000 from banks were bearing interest
rate at 6.5% per annum and guarantee given by the Company as
at 31 December 2007.

(b)  The unsecured bank borrowings comprise:

(i) approximately RMBM2 1,536,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD3,151,000) (2007: approximately RMB78,667,000) from banks
were unsecured, unguaranteed, bearing interest ranging from
5.5% to 6.4% per annum and repayable within one year.

(i)  approximately RMB24,117,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$25,755,000) from a bank was unsecured, unguaranteed,
bearing interest rate at 5.7% per annum as at 31 December 2007.

(i) approximately RMB66,950,000 from banks were unsecured,
unguaranteed, bearing interest ranging from 6.2% to 7.3% per
annum as at 31 December 2007.

27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET

(@) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

(a)

BaE (8

(iv)

RZZEZEF+_A=+—H 4
6,604,000t AR 2 B E R %M
RITIRME - IR F F E6.5%5 B
AR RRME 2 EREERR -

() MIEIMRITEERE:

U]

(iii)

#921,536,0007C A R (FHE K 49
3,151,000 L) (ZZ T F - 4
78,667,000 ARKE) 26 BB %
HRITIRE - BEER - REAX
5.5"/0;%6.40/0%-"«%\ ' D(&%E\E/\‘\fi
REE -

R-ZZEZ+LF+-_A=+—8%
24,117,000t AR (FHE R K
25,755,000 70) 2 e E B — iR
TR - BEEA - BIER  RF
K5 7%5 8 -

R-ZEZ+LF+-_A=+—8%
66,950,000T AR 2 fE B R Z M
RITIRMG - AEIEA - BIER 1R
ERMRE2%ET 3% B ©

27. RREERBRZFEHR

BEABRZAPHEARE

The Group
A K
2008 2007

—EENF —EETLF

RMB’000 RMB’" 000

FRAR® TTARE

Provision for the year EEERE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —FR B EREH
— Other tax jurisdictions —E M=
Provisional tax paid 2 EAB
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEW
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — Bl TSR
— Other tax jurisdictions —Ha =

6,989 2,602
323 -
(10,887) (234)
(330) -

(3,905) 2,368
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 2. R EEERBRZAMBH
BALANCE SHEET (Continued) (#&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERERECEHEEENEE:
The Group rEE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised FAN - NEFEEEEBERER
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during REHIEEE (AE) AR IBH
the year are as follows: REZBBEROT
Revaluation

Accelerated of investment

depreciation property Total
ETE BhREWHE st
RMB"000 RMB"000 RMB"000

TEAR% TEAR®E TRAR®

—_
(09)
—_

Deferred tax arising from: HUTSEEEZELERE

At 1 January 2007 RZZET+F—H—H 27 - 27 o

Charged to profit or loss (note 7(a)) ~ R IBzE X (FiTEE7(@a)) (27) - 27) E;
i
=

At 31 December 2007 R-BEZLF+-_A=1—H - - - af
il
>

At 1 January 2008 R-ZZZENF—-A—H - - - o

Charged to profit or loss (note 7(@) ~ MIBZ &R I (HF:X7(a)) - (8,434) (8,434)

Effect of exchange difference EREREsZE8 - 470 470 S
(o]
_FH‘

At 31 December 2008 R-ZBENF+_A=1+—H - (7,964) (7,964) s

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (0 WARBRZELEHEEE

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of REER  AEBBERSABIE

RMB31,851,000 (2007: RMB 21,929,000) available for offset /& 1831,851,000c ARK (=&

against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. T+ 4 121,929,000 A R ¥)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the A AP 85 R 2R 4 1 i ] fR PR HR

tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. MEEE o PN ATE AR AR I 2Rk

R+ B 30 4 A A TR B 1R W R
LEHAEE °
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28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
24 May 2004, for the primary purpose of providing incentives
and to recognise the contribution of the eligible participants to
the growth of the Group and will expire on 24 May 2014. Under
the share option scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible
full time employees, including any executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors, and consultants or advisers
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Up to 31 December 2008, no options have been granted since the
adoption of the share option scheme in 2004. The total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the share
option scheme and any other option schemes is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company, without prior approval from
the Company'’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant to
the 10 years of the date of grant. No minimum period for which
an option must be held is required. The exercise price, which is
determined by the Board, is the highest of: (i) the closing price per
share on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price per share
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RE W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=—ZZENF+_A=+—HIFE

28. UREREEWURMDAER

ZR5
ARABRE-—BAR_ZTTWNFERA
“TBERAZERERTE TR H
MERARERSEER TEB LR
BRERAEEZKRIELZER
ZEEMR T -WFRAZ+THIA
@i e REBEREFS EFEAM
REBRZE2RES (BEARAR X
HEMMBARZERMMNITES  3F
WITEFREUIFATES RERK
RN BB R -

HE-_ZZ/\F+A=1+—H B=
T F IR S S AR &
BT ERE - EREARBIRE
HARET  RIBFEIRE S AW
HMERETEI s L 2 AR AERT
W2 RN BB S BB A E
DEITIAN 230% © R EARRD T
REERAOET + BMERF E M (A @
AFTRER 2 BEIRREFT S Ik 2 IR 17 &K
BETSHBBAARDEITRAEZ1% -

BRETHERLAMEZAEE0
FAERTE BEREVERER
Bz REHH EEQMETE LT
FEENERATEE &S © ()RD
KL BE 2 BRRUTHIE : (DD R
EERLBHNAEALXRZ TS
BB ¢ MDA D E1E
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29. RA K f# %
(a) The Group (a) &=KH
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RATERRFEL
Statutory  Statutory Proposed
Share Share Special surplus public ~ Exchange Retained final Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve  welfare fund reserve profits dividend Total interests equity

Bx  ROEE  BABE  EE0RE  EEQEE  EXGE  REMA ERRARR &t HUERER L
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOD0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0
TRARE  TRARE TRARE TRARE TRARE TRARE TRARE TIARE TIARE TIARE  TRARE

At 1 January 2007 RZZELE-F-H 50,480 37,586 67,570 18,254 495 (1,548) 77,054 9,600 263,946 97,846 361,792
Capital contrioution received  —F3F2 EHEAF
byanon-wholyowned ~ BOBBRIEE

subsidiary from a
minority shareholder - - - - - - - - - 10331 10331

Issue of new shares, EE R
et of ssuance costs EARE
(note 29(c)(ii) (W29 8,980 44,759 - - - - - - 53739 - 53739

Appropriations AR - - - 127 - - (1.271) - - - -

Disposal of subsidiaries BRIEEHERZ
attibutable to discontinued ~ HERE AR (331) .
operations (note 31) - - - - - (139) - - (139) (53,444) (53,583) E;

Bichange differenceson ~ REBHRERZFIEH ;-5
translation of financial EEERER P
Statements to presentation =
currency - - - - - (5,629) - - (5,625) (1,006) (6,631) S

Proft for the year ERET - - - - - - 13,802 - 13,802 3,109 16,911 al

Dividend paid (note 1206) BRI (Ff3E12(0)) - - - - - - - (9,600) (9,600) - (9,600)

Dividend declared in FFESRRS )
respectof the current year  (H312(a)) §
(note 12(a) - - - - - - (11,520) 11,520 - - - iy

A

At 31 December 2007 RZE3tET-A=1+-R 59,460 82,345 67,570 19,525 4950 (7312) 78,065 11,520 316,123 56,836 372,959

At 1 January 2008 R=%Z\5-f-A 59,460 82,345 67,570 19,525 4,950 (7312) 78,065 11,520 316,123 56,836 372,959

Capital contribution received  — k2 EHBAT

byanon-wholyowned ~ EHERETE

subsidiary from

minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - 3,266 3,266
Appropriations LI - - - 1,225 - - (1,225) - - - -
Exchange differences BEEHRRERZIIEY

ontranslation of financial ~ %7 EREE

Statements to presentation

currency - - - - - (10,063) - - (10,063) (1,643) (11,706)
Profitfor the year ERET - - - - - - 122 - 1222 3326 10,548
Dividend paid (note 12(0) A& E (Ht1200)) - - - - - - - (11,520) (11,520) - (1,520)
Dividend declared to S BRRER

minority shareholder LRE - - - - - - (4926) 4,926 - - -
Dividend paid tominority B8R

sharefolder ZHRE - - - - - - - (4,926) (4,926) - (4,926)

At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\E+ZA=1-8 59,460 82,345 67,570 20,750 4,950 (17375) 79,136 - 296,836 61,785 358,621
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 29. BA K @G (F)

(b) The Company (b) A2 T
Proposed
Share Share Special  Exchange Accumulated final
capital premium reserve reserve losses dividend Total
B
RE  BROEE  KAHEE  EXRE  BHER KBRS @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TIARE  FTRARE  TRARE  TrARE  TrAR%E  TrnARE  TrARE
At 1 January 2007 RZEZ+E-FA—-B 50480 37,586 125,211 (11,616) (22,182) 9,600 189,079
Exchange differences HENERE
on translation of BEJIEBEL
financial statementsto 2B Z%
presentation currency - - - (11,392) - - (11,39)
Issue of new shares, BT -
net of issuance costs MREAA
(note 29(c)(ii) (BEF29(0)i)) 8,980 44,759 - - - - 53,739
Loss for the year ENER - - - - (9,845) - (9,845)
Dividend paid (note 12(b))  EFIRE (FzE12(0)) - - - - - (9,600) (9,600)
Dividend declared REEERZRE
in respect of the (P& 12(a))
current year
(note 12(a)) - - - - (11,520) 11,520 -
At31December 2007 HZETLF
+-A=ft-H 59,460 82,345 125,211 (23,008) (43,547) 11,520 211,981
At 1 January 2008 R-ZTN\E-F-B 59,460 0365 15211 (3008 (B354) 1150 211,981
Exchange differences AEEIHHE
on translation of BEIIERES
financial statementsto ~~ ZEREE
presentation currency - - - (12,213) - - (12,213)
Loss for the year ERNER - - - - (8,259) - (8.259)
Dividend paid (note 120)  EM&E (FzE12(0)) - - - - - (11,520) (11,520)
At31December 2008  HZEFTN\F
+-A=t-8 59,460 82,345 125,211 (35,221) (51,806) - 179,989
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 29. BRA K & (58)

(c) Share capital () WA
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZTRA
2008 2007
—EENE LR
Number Number
of shares RMB of shares RMB
RAEE ARY BB ARE
Note ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
Bt T T ¥ T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares BmEE
of HK$0.10 each 0.108TZ
ik (ii) 2,000,000 195,662 1,000,000 107,168
Ordinary shares EEITRER e
issued and ZERK KA
fully paid: g
At 1 January K—H—H 576,000 59,460 480,000 50,480 ot
Shares issued RIERLE &
under placement BT (iii) = = 96,000 8,980 >
al
At 31 December RtZA=1t—H 576,000 59,460 576,000 59,460 )
o
03]
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive BaEFE ABERKRIRTEEIR g

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled IRE - WHERARAKRER
TLIMBERBRNEE —EKE
e MARB ZRGEEMS

to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company’ s residual assets. e mkERERS#ER -
(i) Increase in authorised share capital (i)  BBIZEERA

By an ordinary resolution passed at the special general BE—ZZENFARARBE

meeting held on 6 June 2008, the Company’s authorised ZERRFHNARG L@EBzE

share capital was increased to HK$200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB195,662,000) by the
creation of an additional 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each, ranking pari passu with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company in all respects.

R $/“72/£mﬂx$i‘
200,000,000 7T (/8 & R4
195,662,0007c A R#) - 5K A
# 3%1,000,000, oooaxitﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁ
0108 Lz LBk  ZELRRK
E%ﬁ@iﬁi$ﬁﬁfﬁﬁj§iﬁﬂx¥
ERSHER -
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued)

(iii)

Issue of new shares

Pursuant to the subscription agreements entered into by
the Company and 7 investors dated 13 August 2007,
96,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company were issued on 27 August 2007 at a price of
HK$0.60 per share. All the new shares issued rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing shares.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Acts of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Acts of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve
The Group

The amount represents the paid-in capital of the
Company of 1 share of HK$0.10 each and the special
reserve of RMB83,570,000 arising from exchange of 1
share of the Company of HK$0.10 for the entire share
capital of Bamian pursuant to the reorganisation scheme
dated 12 December 2005.

The Company

The special reserve represented the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the value of the underlying assets of the
subsidiaries pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 12
December 2004.

NE-FF\FI-A=+—ALEE

29. AR fw s (48)

(0 K& (&)

(i1i)

EITHTR (7
BRERAQAARHELZEES
SIVEHA-ZTELF
NAT+Z=ZHZ2RERHZE
96,000,000% & i% M {80.10
BILZARNREBRAR T
Z+ENAZ+H+HBHRER
0608 L2 BIRE1T - 1A
RO ES TEEE R 2R
BRI -

(d) REZIMEEREN

(1)

(i)

17t B
i aERzBAXASE
SRBVEFRE -

RIEFSHERRE AR
A Bt it (B ik 2 B & A 2k
FTARARR - HERREEH
IRERRBIR - RNRRIZHRER
BNEEEGHE A

(==
8

o

1+ Al
AEE

ZEFIEARRRENI0.10
BULZEHREA - UAKE
BIEBEEHAZZSTAF+=
A+—BZzEHEAEUAR
A10.108 T2 1R H IR E
P92 EPRR AN EE £ 2 RN R
#583,570,0007T A R -

YiIN/NE]|

ERREEARRRE-Z
ZNF+-_A+-HZ&EE
BHE - RRBRHBARCDH
TR AT B 1T 2 AR (D A
WEBAGIEEEEE 5 -
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i) Statutory surplus reserve

(iv)

The Articles of Association of Guangzhou Mayer
requires the appropriation of 10% of its profit after
taxation, based on its statutory audited accounts, each
year to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. According to the
provision of the Articles of Association of Guangzhou
Mayer, in normal circumstances, the statutory surplus
reserve shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of the
production and operation of Guangzhou Mayer. For
the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share
capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not
be less than 25% of the registered share capital.

Statutory public welfare fund

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law, Guangzhou Mayer
shall make allocation from its profit after taxation at the
rate of 5% to 10% to the statutory public welfare fund,
based on its statutory audited accounts. The statutory
public welfare fund can only be utilised on capital items
for employees’ collective welfare. Individual employees
only have the right to use these facilities, the titles to
which will remain with the company. The statutory
public welfare fund forms part of the shareholders’
equity but is non-distributable other than in liquidation.
With effect from 1 January 2006, the appropriation
is not a statutory requirement in accordance with the
PRC Company Law (2006 Amendment). Guangzhou
Mayer adopted the amended Company Law and no
appropriation was made.
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(s).

(e) Distributability of reserves

()

At 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB155,750,000 (2007: RMB175,529,000).
After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed a final
dividend of RMBNIl cent per share (2007: RMB2 cents per
share), amounting to RMBNil (2007: RMB11,520,000). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the balance
sheet date.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits
to other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
stakeholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

29. AR fw s (48)

(d) fEEZEERE N ()

) B

[E R REH e REEINER
BHBREEEZAAERLE
£ o IR IIRIRMEE2(s)PT
HZETHEREE -

(e) EEDIK

(f)

RZBEZENF+ZA=+—H "
Al IR T AR A S IR R 2
1% 48 %8 /5155,750,0007C A R
— T T4 ¢ 175,529,0007T A
REE) - REEB%R  EFEHIK
BREARBEERESARE (=
T LF GO ARE) 4
BETTARE (ZEZTLF:
11,520,000t AR#) - R#EH
B lBREYAEREAE -

EXEE

AEEEREAZHERRER
BASEFBERLERN  URK
RIBHEHR  BEREMF 2 E
FEARRFEBIENEARZRB AR
BWESRA -

AEEEHEHRG NERLE
AR BRERSEEKFA
wRERSMNEAAREE DR - 2R
i B 7S K S AL 75 2R 2 41 BE AR IR
ZHEBETE Y AREBLEES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=B

B % WS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE=—ZTZENF+_A=+—HIFE

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(f)

Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total bank borrowings (including current
and non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’, as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet, shareholders’ funds (i.e. total
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company)
plus net debt.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2007, was to maintain the gearing ratio below 80%. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group’s gearing ratio at 31 December 2008 and 2007
was as follows:

29. AR fw s (48)

(f)

EXREE (&)

AEEMNBEABBL RER
BARE MOENAEANED -
BEARBBHERRFEBRUAEE
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2008 2007

—2E2N\F  —FTLF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

FTRARY FTAREE

Total borrowings BEE 244,141 311,402
Less: Cash and cash equivalents &l - ]R& RIS EEHIER

and bank deposits LA R SRIT 17 5K (84,951) (113,998)

Net debt FES 159,190 197,404

Shareholders’ funds REE R 296,836 316,123

Total capital HBE R 456,026 513,527

Gearing ratio BERBELE 35% 38%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 30.

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and bank

deposits, available-for-sale financial assets, bank borrowings, trade

and other receivables and trade and other payables. Details of the

financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks

associated with these financial instruments include credit risk,

liquidity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

The policies on how to mitigate theses risks are set out below. The

management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(a) Credit risk

(i) As at 31 December 2008, the maximum exposure to

credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each

financial asset in the consolidated balance sheet after

deducting any impairment allowance.

(i) In respect of trade and other receivables, in order to

minimize risk, the management has a credit policy

in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its

customers’ financial position and condition is performed

on each and every major customer periodically. These

evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of

making payments when due and current ability to

pay, and take into account information specific to

the customer as well as pertaining to the economic

environment in which the customer operates. The

Group does not obtain collateral in respect of its

financial assets. Debts are usually due within 30 to 180

days from the date of billing and may be extended to

selected customers depending on their trade volumes

and settlement with the Group. Usually, debtors with

balances that are more than 6 months past due are

requested to settle all outstanding balances before any

further credit is granted.

MR EER N REE

ARARZEFESMIABERS KR
T AL ESREE RITHE
5 EFRUIRTR R E A YT IR - LA
K B 5 AT R 5K K EL A B A 5RIR o it
FeMTAZHFBRARBMENE -
HpESMTAAREZARBIEE
R - RBESER - B¥ER - F
TR R EMERER - A TEHEN
MREZERRZEE EEEER
REBRBRIIERS EREEELES
M BT °

(a) EERM

i) R-ZBENF+-_A=+—
B &ezEERARDER
R ERERBERES
BEABRTEBATREE
ZIREE °

(i) TEE 5 FEYUR 3R E R UL
RIEHE AEEERRE B
BECHEEERRRFE
EBEERR - BF B
TR 2 AZ E R T 5E AR
HE—EEZRPHET Ut
EHMEEREPUREZE
B R ER 8 & B BT 2 4 5kaE
N WERIEFPZEREEA
BARE P EE Z&BEIRE
HEBER - REBEWED
SREENSERR  EF
WMEHREEHH®L302180
AREIE - mgskE s BR
HMEEBRAIT TER - KT
BERAEECESHHER
HEEIBERME - —MBME -
ERESHRBRINEABEBR
Nz EWHIE  BEEPA
BB REBEHESRERT
BEE—FIEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MB®E W

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk. At the balance
sheet date, the Group’s concentration of credit risk
by geographical locations is mainly in the PRC, which
accounted for 93% (2007: 92%) of the total trade and
other receivables as at 31 December 2008. The Group
has concentration of credit risk by customers as for 31%
(2007: 56%) and 16% (2007: 34%) of the total trade
and other receivables were due from the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer respectively
as at 31 December 2008.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long term strategic purposes.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 21.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 0. KAKMEEENRBE
AND POLICIES (Continued) (#8)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBESEMR

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to board approval. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2008,
the Group has available un-utilised banking facilities of
approximately RMB544,653,000 (2007: RMB230,487,000).

The following liquidity table set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

REEET 2EARNKEEERER
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BHRZERIRERESEERIAE
NERReFRk HEEESS
ZHOERAEE - AEE 2R
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 0. KAKMEEENRBE

AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELSEMR (&)
The Group KE
2008 007
Z3BNF RRE
More than ~ More than Total Morethan  More than Total
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but contractual Within - Tyearbut 2 years but contractual
fyearor  lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted  Camying  Tyearor  lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted  Carrying
on demand Jyears  Syeas  Syeas  cashfow  amount  ondemand 2years 5years Syears  cshflow  amount
-Ehg -E& FER THARR “ERE Rk BEK THAER
EEX  EmER  BRFRN RBRK RERME  REE  BEN  BRER  ERER BEK BEREE kAR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  AMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RVBO00  RMBI000
TTARE  TRARE TRARE TRIARE TRARE TRARE TRARE TuARE  TrARE TIARE TTARE  TRARE
Bank borrowings Bifke 143,709 16,048 18,143 5199  2998% 414 317754 - N4 3114
Trade and 2REMENR
ot payables HERTE 0 - BT BT 3647 - 36478 36418
bis
196,926 16,048 818 519% 3113 29738 oM - 643 631880 FH
[
The Company K A] :
2008 2007 =
ZERNF 55t >
Morethan ~ More than Total Morethan ~ More than Total o
Within 1 yearbut 2 years but contractual Within - Tyearbut 2 yearsbut contractual N
Tyearor  lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted ~ Carrying ~ Tyearor  lessthan  lessthan ~ Morethan  undiscounted ~ Carnying S
[09)
on demand Jyears  Syears  Syears  cashfow  amount  ondemand 2years 5years Syeas cshflon  amount -H?
-Ehg  -EE FE4 THAYE —ERE Rk RER THRER i
EEX  EREMN  @RFMN BRK REMME  REE  BER BRER ERERN DEFK BEREE kAR
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB00  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB'OO0  RMBO00  RMB'000
TTARE  TRARE TRARE TIARE TRARY TRARR TRARE TrARE TRARE TIARE TRARE TRARE
Barkborowings  H7fEE 6,951 - 6951 6,866 - - - -
Other payabes AfbEfzE 30850 - 080 3080 109 - 1090 1090
37,801 - 38 31716 109 - 1,09 1,09

(o F=Ek

RE BIRBEF RKF RRE R
) % B 4 A 5 B B TS KO AT 4
Bz BmeEmEEFRaR - K
SEYWER A FELBS R E
[ e i i BT A ] 4 3R S R R
EEREERASERS A
% WENEREE B M E
[\ o

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on
interest rate level and outlook as well as potential impact
on the Group’s financial position arising from volatility. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to fair value and cash flow interest rate risks.
The directors monitor the Group’s exposure on ongoing basis
and will consider hedging the interest rate should the need
arise.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 0. KAKMEEENRBE

AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () A=EE(H)
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation AEEAREEBERTEBIRIT
to fixed-rate borrowings and bank deposits carrying fixed FRMEYAFENZRERE 3
interest rates and cash flow interest rate risk in relation to AUMEBENERE 2 ZEEER
variable-rate borrowings and short-term deposits placed SR 1T B 4 B A 4T HRE S T
in banks and financial institutions that are interest-bearing B4 nflEAK 2SR AENE
at market interest rates. The directors consider the Group’s B > 887715 20 Y O A T {E B R

exposure of the bank deposits to fair value interest rate risk
is not significant as interest-bearing bank deposits are within
short maturity period.

RT® AR ERITERR
RSN BIH -

(i) Interest rate profile 0  FIEES
The following table details the interest rate profile of the j?j #?J ?% ﬁ&g@?’z
Group’s and the Company’s interest-bearing financial iuﬁmﬂéfi&i;%@mé
assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities at the BEREHERZHERAS

balance sheet date:

The Group The Company
r5E KAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\E S “E2E)N\F ZEREE
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
Lk ERME 1Yk BRI
% RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000
Al FrRARE BAlt  THARE Bl TrARE BAl  FTARE
Assets BE
Bank balances  SR{THEE
and deposits Rizé 0.05%- 84,868 0.1%- 113,891 0..05%- 9,113 0.1%- 15,364
20% 12% 3.55% 4.85%
Liabilities 8f
Fixed rate EEfE
borrowings
Bank borrowings  {TREE 221%- 119,109 526% 310,117 - - - -
6.4% 7.29%
Variablerate ~ FEEE
borrowings
Bank borrowings  S{TREE 229%- 125032 5.73% 1,285 3.95% 6,866 - -
3.95%
Total borrowings  2fEE 2414 311,402 6,866 - -

Netfiedrate — FEEEFH
boowingsas  {EFEE
apecentage  HEZ
of total Bal
net borrowings 48.79% 99.59% - - -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 0. KAKMEEENRBE
AND POLICIES (Continued) (#8)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () F=ZREk (E)

(i)  HERE T

(i) Sensitivity analysis

All of the bank loans and bank deposits of the Group
which are fixed rate instruments are insensitive to any
change in interest rates. A change in interest rates at the
balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss.

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates
for variable rate borrowing, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group'’s
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB200,000 (2007: RMB987,000). Other components
of consolidated equity would not change in response to
to the general increase/decrease in interest rates.

AEEFARTERRET
BR (BT A TR HAEE
B HBETE - REEHE
PEIES DES ST

RZEBZENF+ZA=+—
B BEAREEMG 28
BEZMEEE LA TH
ATEF - MAAEEMTE
A=EFITE  NEBZK
i 18 0 F R AR BB 5 I 8 & 0
A /18 H149200,0007T A R
ks (ZZFZ+4F : 987,0007T

N N A

ARE) - inaREmA 2 HAt iy

HERED TR/ E & i3

mA KR - =

af

\ N &

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined R BURE D AT TR A )
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred FEHeREEREAERER o
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the AZBFEZFTESHE o
net exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative EUARRE RRITERZ §
financial liabilities and cash and bank deposits in ) 3 3\ B 5 B8 o 18 h0 SR A i
existence at that date. The 50 basis points increase or A+ FREEEELHMEX e

decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the

REET—EAFEHEERLL
MM AR e E B 2 A5t -

period until the next annual balance sheet date. The —EZLF 2N REM
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007. A EAEHETT o
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 0. KAKMEEENRBE
AND POLICIES (Continued) (#8)

(d) Currency risk (d) E¥Eb

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars, New Taiwan dollars, Vietnam
Dong and Hong Kong dollars.

As the estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of
committed future sales and purchases and estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable forecast
sales and purchases is not significant, no hedging on foreign
currency risk has been carried out during the year under
review.

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company'’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

(i)

AEBESHZINERR  TER
B 3FAARRE XA M BE K AT
BZEE -BBEBREIZRAX
JC el MEEMET -

A B BT MR SR B B 2 A 2O S
B A R B A A 17 2 TR
B2 EHMERREEEA  E
U 7 I B4 343 T SN L
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ST IFAARRE XM MDD BE E 5T
BZEZRUIRR K E 5 MR
R E - AEE R R R RS
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 0. KAKMEEENRBE

AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥ER(E)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () BEHEESERE (E)
The Group NE
2008
= I
United New Hong
States Taiwan Kong  Singapore
dollars dollars dollars dollars
En Fa¥ BT HIHR
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr T T T
Trade and other receivables B SRS Rt R 11,081 23,410 14,682 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeZEER 6,934 - 4,316 75
Pledged bank deposits BEBRTER 600 = = =
Bank borrowings RITIEE (18,427) = = = i
Trade and other payables B S EMER R A ENFUR (1,670) (91,689) (208) = :;
Derivative financial instrument ~ $T££ @ T & (4,000) - - - %
af
Overall net exposure arising EXBERREERER E\E
from recognised assets ZEERAR ij
and liabilities (5,482) (68,279) 18,790 75
S
2007 2
“TTLE i
United New Hong .
States Taiwan Kong Vietnam
dollars dollars dollars Dong
e =) BT HWrE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr T T T
Trade and other receivables B 5 REUUIR T R E IR 39,000 51,000 34,000 2,453,000
Trading securities R5EH 1,000 - 12,000 -
Cash and bank deposits Be RRITER 3,000 2,000 17,000 -
Bank borrowings RiTEE (29,000) - (26,000) -
Trade and other payables B SRR E MR 5B (15,0000 (726,000) (1,0000  (342,000)
Overall net exposure arising EfBCHAEERAR
from recognised assets ZEEREAR
and liabilities (1,000) (673,000) 36,000 2,111,000
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

30. B EBREEBMNREE

AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥ER(E)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () BEHEESERE (E)
The Company i/
2008
—EENF
United States New Taiwan
dollars dollars
EYH maw
‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr
Pledged bank deposits B IRIRITIF R 600 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEIEE 533 =
Bank borrowings RITIEE (1,000) =
Other payables HAib eI 5IE - (118,748)
Overall net exposure arising EXECHREENREBE
from recognised assets 2T
and liabilities 133 (118,748)
2007
—ETEEF
United States
dollars
e
‘000
T
Pledged bank deposits BHERRITIFR 600
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEIER 433
Overall net exposure arising EXECHREERBEZ
from recognised assets e FER M

and liabilities

1,033
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the balance sheet date.

30. B EBREEBMNREE

(&)

(d) EWERGE

(i) SRS

TERFIRAEE 2 BB
FI (R R 8% FI) E B Sh 5
(REEREH A AHEAE
REBE) EXT MR
ARBETEEZHOSE -

The Group PN
2008 2007

“EENF —EELE
Effect on Effect on
Increase/ profit Increase/ profit
(decrease) after (decrease) after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
HERB% HIRH&
NEEEX  RARRHE OEER RN RRE
R/ (%) A ZE 7t/ (%) Wiz TE
RMB'000 RMB'000
TRAR® FLARE
United States dollars e 5%/(5%) (1,870)/1,870 5%/(5%)  (1,000)/1,000
New Taiwan dollars mak 5%/(5%) (710)/710 5%/(5%)  (8,000)/8,000
Hong Kong dollars BT 5%/(5%) 827/(827) 5%/(5%)  2,000/(2,000)
Singapore dollars ST 5%/(5%) 1/(1) 5%/(5%) -

=R =t i A

% & 8007
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to each
of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet
date. Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects on each of
the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the balance
sheet date for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

(e) Fair values

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables are
not materially different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments. The carrying amounts of bank borrowings
approximately their fair values.

30. AR EEBAENREE

(%)

(d)

(e)

E¥ER (&)

(i)  HESE DT (&)
BURE DT TH R RN [ K
EEARAEERET SRR
Rz B FEZITERIEITE
ERTAMPREERER -
mAAEmEH CLEEF
K)OERTE -

e EEREHEET
—EFEAEBR EHREANI
BERAEHAZAEES
ZAhEH e ERFTURZ DA
RRERYAKEETEERE
BB A B W IRER A
ZEZRME/AREUAHEE
5l 2 PR R TR 1808 ) e #E 2
FERE - ZOWMIIA=
T LFZRA—EEET -

AVE
AeRRESHEER RITH
S TY U S EL e
AR E 5 IR HUR A A 1
FEZAFESRLEAELEE
XER EARZERIATE
SR AR A O B o SR 4TI
ZIEEERA L EHE -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

()

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of the
following financial instruments:

(i)  Securities

Fair value is based on listed market price at the balance
sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs.

(i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

(i) ~ Financial quarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made.

—BEEASt—AILFE

30, BEBEERNREE
(&)

AT B

M REA A A T BT

AMATFENEETENER

U]

(1)

(ir)

(i)

Tl

RNPFETIRIEREE B PR
TE (T HEERIR ZRA)

e

FEEXLER
RFEBRRRREREHR
BEABENSR TANRT
MIGMRITREH) fH5t

HEER

BEELOMBEROQF
BN2ERURBERFR
P WE ey & A (a0 w2
BZER)  R2EMNXER
tEfbE TARLBERE
R T B 7 WER ) B B R 2 B
BREORBERTHEBE &
Y HR B9 I R (30 3% & & e
A SR o

—_
(9)}
N
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31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES ATTRIBUTABLE B1.ERILEEBELCHEHRB L
TO DISCONTINUED OPERATION Gl

SLANHT SESETIL - A E B E AR 2

H#428 51 %R AERBHE T A8

25 - {8 /A149,500,0007T # & % (48

&R #934,609,000T AR ) o BALR

As explained in note 8, the Group disposed all its remaining
28.51% equity interests in Fullchamp to Taiwan Mayer for a
consideration of NTD149,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB34,609,000). The net assets of Fullchamp at the date of

disposal were as follows: LERPHZEEFENT :
2007
—EREF
RMB’'000
FrRARE
Property, plant and equipment (note 15(a)) M - s RRE (EE15) 109,832
Cash and bank balances R& KERITHE R 5,763
Inventories FE 75,252
Trade and bill receivable H S RIS R R 27,474
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e TR REMEWFIE 2,990
Pledged deposits [REEECVED /N 6,142
Trade payables B MR (4,925)
Deposit received Bilire (7,526)
Accrual and other payables FERTE R & E A FRIE (9,850)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (130,394)
Net assets value of subsidiaries ME AR EEFAE 74,758
% of ownership HEEZESL 28.51%
Net assets value of subsidiaries owned HENBRARZEEFE 21,314
Gooduwill (note 16) B8 (Mt16) 4,719
Sales proceeds & FTIS ROR (34,609)
Realisation of exchange reserve BIRE S FEE (139)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries attributable BRI EEE RN 2 HEHTE
to discontinued operation (note 8) NElZWE (HFE8) (8,715)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalent arising BRIFEBEG 2 HERNB AR
on the disposed of subsidiaries attributed to EEZE2ERBE2EEEREZ
discontinued operation FIMA
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FritEvRe RIReSEIAE (5,763)
Cash received from Taiwan Mayer mEEEDWIZIRS 34,609
Net cash inflow from disposal HEZIRERAFE 28,846

The impact of Fullchamp on the Group’s results and cash flows in

the prior year had been disclosed in note 8.

ERUAEEEFZEERRERE
VR BB N K 8 EE -
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions which were carried out in
the normal course of the Group’s business:

(i

ROC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an aircraft lease agreement with Daily
Air Corporation (“Daily Air”), a related company in
which Mr. Huang Chun-fa, a non-executive director
of the Company, has beneficial interest, regarding the
leasing of four aircrafts and the provision of consultancy
services by ROC to Daily Air for a term of three years
commencing from 1 May 2006 to 30 April 2008 in
consideration of rental income and consultancy fee
income. On 6 May 2008, the lease agreement was
further extended to 7 July 2011 with rental income
and consultancy fee income remain unchanged.
At the balance sheet date, RMB7,025,000 (2007:
RMB6,473,000) is due from this related company (note
21(e)). Total amounts received during the year are
disclosed in (vi) below.

On 13 April 2007, ROC entered into the Aircraft
Sale Agreement with Sino Regal Assets Limited
("Sino Regal”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan
Mayer, the ultimate holding company, to acquire two
aircrafts from Sino Regal for a total consideration
of approximately US$2,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB15,400,000). On the same date,
Sino Regal and Daily Air executed the Lease Assignment
Agreement. Under the Lease Assignment Agreement,
ROC has agreed to continuously lease the aircrafts to
Daily Air for the period commencing from the date of
the Lease Assignment Agreement to 30 April 2008
for an annual rental of US$552,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,300,000). The Aircrafts Sale
Agreement and the Lease Assignment Agreement were
completed on 31 May 2007.

N.EXEHEALRS
(a) RERN KAEEEREESHE
FrEABBEALTRSHT

(i)

REEZ2EKHBAREER
BHREQARELZMERNDA
RAF (EEmE]) (KA
BIEMITESEEELER
HAWAEESER) MR
BHEEWRZ  RAEHEINE
ik HERMABEREY
MERHEBERRE 822
ERFRA—BE-ZZN
FMA=+HItAH=F"
REAESWAKRBERE
WA - RZZEZNFAHAN
B HEpzcE—STE
E2-FT——FtAH H
cAL OO T ONETE 2
Nt NEEER BUZE
8 38 N 7] 5878 /57,025,000
TARBK(ZZEZ A F -
6,473,0007T A R ¥&) (B 5
21(e)) > ERURE Z 483058
AT XX E -

RZEZLFMWMA+=H -
MeE BB KIER AT A E
28 2 2 &8 A AlSino Regal
Assets Limited ([ Sino Regal |)
EIURBHEE R - A
Sino Regalf& & /28 AR 4 -
# (B4 %2,000,000% T
(A& H#915,400,0007T AR
#) o F HSino Regal X B %
MEFVHEEERZE - R
BHEEZEDZ  BERE
BELERETRLMZE
mAEERBEDHEE S
T NFMA=FHILF
A & %&552,000% 7T (FHE R
#94,300,0007T A R &) - 7R
MEEmEEEEEE RS
BERZZEELFRA=+—
HehK °

e
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=
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 13 April 2007, Guangzhou Mayer, a 81.4%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Raw Material Purchase Agreement with
Taiwan Mayer, the ultimate holding company, for
the acquisition of raw materials from Taiwan Mayer
for the period commencing from 1 April 2007 to 31
March 2010. The directors of the Company expect that
the maximum amount of raw material purchase for
the three years ending 31 March 2010 will be in the
amounts of USD3,900,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB30,100,000), USD4,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB33,200,000) and USD4,700,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB36,300,000),
respectively.

During the year, Guangzhou Mayer has purchased
raw materials from Taiwan Mayer of RMB Nil
(2007: USD1,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB10,600,000)) at terms similar to those charged by
independent third party supply.

On 13 April 2007, Sunbeam, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the Share Disposal
Agreement with Taiwan Mayer, to dispose all of its
28.51% equity interest in Fullchamp for a consideration
of NTD 149,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB34,600,000) in cash. The disposal of Fullchamp was
completed on 1 July 2007.

At 31 December 2008, a personal guarantee is given by
Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing, a director of the Company, to a bank
for banking facilities granted to the Group.

2\t —AILFE

NR.EXEBEAEALTRS (E)

(a)

(&)

(iii)

(iv)

RZZEZ+FMA+=H"
KRAREZEFES 4%Em
2B AR EMNEDRF
BREBR AR A EEDNL
BRI B umA
EBEGHBRME A=
Z+FmMA—A ii:%
—TEE=ZA=+—Hlt-
AAREEHEHEEZ=-Z
—ZEFZA=ZF+—HL=
F-EMBREBZFELR
2 3145 43,900,000 7T (48
E 7 #4930,100,0007T A B
)+ 4,300,000% 7T (HHE
7 #933,200,0007T A R #)
%24,700,0003 7T (A8 & R 4
36,300,0007C A R %) -

FR - ﬁﬁ?d\l\\%aﬁaﬁé}%
DERBTITARKE (Z

+ % : 1,400,0003 T (méé?
7 4310,600,0007T A R #E))
ZEME - BEGEREE L
E=FHEMRENEE

RZBEZ+FMA+=H"
RARIZ22EMBRRFN
/\é\/%%EEuT_LHXT & 15
CTUAHEEHERERZ 236
2851%1&% RERE®
149,500,0007C 51 & ¥ (FHE
2 4934,600,0007T A R ) -
EXNHEERER T+
itﬂ_EEﬁX"

RZBENF+_A=1—
B ARARE=REENLLE
RAEEER ZBITEEM
A ERTTHRE B A JELR -
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(vi)

—EEEHASH—RILER

R.ERFHREALXRZ (F)

(a) (&)
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed (vi) BRZNEF SRS B Ef D S A0
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group Rl R REHIN - NE
also entered into the following material related party ERFAMETUNTEKRE
transactions during the year: FiEALTRS :
Amount paid to/(received
from) the related parties
Name of 21/ (k)
related party Nature of Nature of BEEALTZNE
BEREAL relationship transaction 2008 2007
ZHE/ BB BEztE REME —EENFE ZE2TLH
Note RMB'000 RMB’'000
BiEE FTrAR®E FrARE
Lo Haw and his Family member of Rental paid (i) 120 120
spouse director of
the Company
BELHERE RRRIEEZ BENES
RIGKE
Daily Air Common Rental income (ii) (8,171) (7,195)
director Consultancy fee income (ii) (437) (469)
Consumable stock sales (ii) (1,172) -
BrfzE ZHRAEEEF HeWA
BRERA
EREBFHE
Wealth & Health Minority Consultancy (ii) 455 -
Investments shareholder of fee
Limited Guangzhou Mayer
BN =R BERE
ZLBRE
Winner Industrial ~ Minority Purchases (i) 2,463 -
Corporation shareholder of BE
Limited Vietnam Mayer
BEED
ZLBRE
Notes: FisE

(i) The rental, which was paid for premises owned by Mr. Lo
Haw and his spouse was determined with reference to the
prevailing market rental.

(i) Mutually agreed by the parties concerned.

0] FRERE B M E AL P
Bz—BMEXNzEE
TBERITHSHSHEE °

(ii) HEBALHERE -
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

R.EREFREALXRZ (F)

(Continued) (a) (#&)
(vii) Amount due from/(to) related parties: (viiy FEUR, (FE) BRAEALTR
15
The Group
REH
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FrTARY FrARE
Amount due from a director (note 21)  FEURE Z 7 E (FizE21) 17 -
Amount due from a related company  fEUL A B8 A A FIE
(note 21) (MF5E21) 7,025 6,473
Amount due to a director (note 25) JEE E30E (Fi5E25) (162) -
Amount due to minority shareholder — JEf} > &% 5 5118
(note 25) (M$5E25) (152) -
Amount due to ultimate holding JE o B 42 PR AR 1 B RKIE
company (note 25) (Fft5E25) (21,285) -
Key management personnel remuneration (b) FEEBEABZHM

Remuneration for key management personnel, including

amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note

TEERABZHM (BHEKES
FREE AR R E R Z 5K MM

9 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in HIOFEENETHRESHEEZ
note 10, is as follows: FIE)INTE ¢
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FrRARY FrTARY
Salaries and other short-term e hHAMREE
employee benefits EEEF 4,432 3,835
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIfER 8 9
4,440 3,844

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)).

FrEfaEEat AT E B AR J (MR

6(b)) °
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33. COMMITMENTS 33. &I
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2008 not (@) RZEZENF+-_A=+—81
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: ARBMI RN B MG B2
BAEENAT :
The Group
rEE

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

FTRAR® TETARE

Contracted for EETA
- Acquisition of property, plant — % - SRR
and equipment - 919
The Company did not have any significant capital PMEZEER KRG EE
commitments at both balance sheet date. A EREARALE o
At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease by RZZEZENF+_A=+—H"
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable BRETAIHELEHN 2 BiEx
as follows: EREENREELT -
The Group
EE
2008 2007
—EENF —TELF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARYE FTrTARKE
Within one year —FR 1,376 1,451
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRELFA 630 2,102
2,006 3,553
The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEEBBRECEENEAZIAYE -
leases. The lease typically run for an initial period of one to BHO—ROFTRE—Z=F - HiEMA

three years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. NBEEHAER -
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34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 31 December 2008, the following assets of the Group and the
Company are pledged to banks for the banking facilities and loans
granted to the Group and the Company:

34. EEKH

RZEENE+=_A=+—H UT
AEBRARBZEEECRAEE R
KA ERZIRITEE RERMIKE

FIRAT
The Group The Company
rEE AT

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\FE ZZEELHF ZETIENE —ETLHF
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
iz TRARYE FTARE TRARE® FTrTARE
Building and factory premises 1&F K /E 15(g) 24,376 26,281 - -
Construction in progress EETRE 15(g) 7,656 8,395 = -
Plant and machinery 2% N 3R A 15(g) 34,816 40,701 = -
Investment property KEYE 15(g) 153,976 - = -
Prepaid lease payments TERHEERE  15(g) 8,194 8,416 - -
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITER 23 5,578 46,537 4,120 4,378
234,596 130,330 4,120 4,378

35. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

During the current and prior years, the Company has given
corporate guarantees to certain banks in connection with banking
facilities of RMB244,356,000 (2007: RMB131,777,000) granted
by the banks to the subsidiaries. At 31 December 2008, such
facilities were drawn down by the subsidiaries to the extent of
RMB 172,874,000 (2007: RMB60,736,000).

The maximum liability of the Company under the guarantee
issued represents the amount drawn down by the subsidiary of
RMB172,874,000 (2007: RMB60,736,000). No recognition was
made because the fair value of the guarantee was insignificant and
that the directors did not consider it probable that a claim would
be made against the Company under the guarantee.

35. Bt I iR

RAFEREFE  AARGRHMER
RIERBITEEMRSE TRITIRME
244,356,000t AR®S (ZZ2 2 L F -
131,777,000t A R¥E) 2 R EEAR o
RZEENEFE+_A=+—0 %%
i@~ R 2 IREVE H #9172,874,0007T
AR (ZZZF L4 1 60,736,0007T A
R¥)IEE-

AR EBAZERMAZE &S
B HEZMBARMIRRZ &
172,874,000t AR (Z T4 -
60,736,000 ARHE) - HRIER Z A
FETIIEE MEERAELARAFTHA
RZERMERLARZEE TS
B b 30 4 G ELHE R o
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36. Employee Retirement Benefits

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes
governed by the relevant local government authorities in which
they operate. The Company’s subsidiary in the PRC is required
to make monthly contributions to the retirement schemes up
to the time of retirement of the eligible employees, at a rate of
12% of the local standard basic salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension liabilities to these retired
employees.

The Company operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Company contributes
5% of the relevant payroll to the Scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees. The Company’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the scheme.

As of 31 December 2008, the Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
those schemes beyond the annual contributions described above.

36. EERIKER

REBAZHEESE LS AREY
SEAERMT R RBAMEE 2 TR
HHRKEE - AR B R BB 2 K8
REANBEREERIKAEABERE
REF B R R E R EER
Fei12% - R HE AR R X
SEFRKNEBZERSE

ARRREERBALAERERRY
sl ERTE R 8 ([ZET8)) &t
B ZEERIAAENZESRENR
SEEENRTA - ARRIZABHF
B2 5% mazat EIFHHEK - A RH
HEEBEE - ARE 2 BEHZN
HABELMHRS 2 HEBTES -

RZZBZNEFE+_A=+—8 KL
MFEHERIN  AEBW BRI
MZEHE BB RSB 2 H i
BEREME-
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37. EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 37.

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the Group have the following significant event after the balance

sheet date that need to be disclosed:

On 6 October 2008, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with various vendors which are (i) Taiwan

Mayer, the ultimate holding company of the Company; (ii) Mr.
Huang Chun-fa, being the director of the Company; (iii) Mr. Lai
Yueh-hsing, being director of the Company; and (iv) connected

persons, being associates of either Mr. Huang Chun-fa and Mr.

Lai Yueh-hsing. Pursuant to the agreement, (i) the vendors have

conditionally agreed to sell and the Company has conditionally

agreed to purchase or procure its nominee to purchase

120,477,580 shares of Durban Development Company Limited

("Durban”), representing approximately 88.59% of the entire

issued share capital of Durban at an aggregate consideration of
NTD1,397,539,928 and (i) Durban Investment Company Limited,
in which Mr. Huang Chun-fa has more than 30% equity interests,

has conditionally agreed to sell and the Company has conditionally

agreed to purchase or procure its nominee to purchase the

additional share of Durban (if any) at a consideration of NTD11.60

per share.

The acquisition constituted, under the Listing Rules, a very

substantial acquisition of the Company, the details of which were
set out in the circular issued by the Company on 31 October 2008.
The acquisition had been approved in the extraordinary general

meeting of the shareholders held on 26 November 2008.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the directors of the

Company has decided to terminate the acquisition due to certain
conditions precedent of the agreement had not been fulfilled
or waived on 31 December 2008, being the long stop date for

fulfillment of the conditions precedent of the agreement. By taking

into consideration of the global economic downturn and in the

interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, the

directors decided not to extend the long stop date. Accordingly,
the S&P Agreements became null and void ab initio and the
Company’s obligations to purchase the shares in Durban lapsed.

RERREE
BHBRESEREESN  AREZ
UTEASEAREEATHE -

“EENFTANE ARFETR
BRIV EEGE  BEEAROAR
RIZREERARAEET  (DAA
RBEERHEELE  (IVARRESH
BESE RIVEEZEAL  BERE
BREESBEHEE CBMBEAL -
RigZH=® - VEAEKRERELEM
KA BRERZEBASREERS
ANBEA120,477, 58008 = 22 82 i (9
RAE(MER]) 2Kt HERER
2B BT A #188.59% © AR(E A
1,397,539,9287T 37 & % + K(ii)Durban
Investment Company Limited ( F & &%
FERFHBI0%RAER) B IRERE
HEMmMARRBIEEREEASRE
HRBABARZEZ R (0E)
EREBAN 0T A -

iRIEERA - AR M2 R
EAUWHEE - HERNAAR R A
—ERN\F+AS+-AZAR- K
ARHER-FENE A=t
B 84T 2 BRI BIAE LR -

REER®R BEFERELLKBF
B RE/ZWEZE T RRIGHE
T N\F+ZA=+—H BEXZ
Wik SORIGIFR SRR TR B B) MK
ENBER R ERINEHREET R
ZHRBRR/ARARERR RN
HER EBEFREFMERKETHKA
HoRit BEEWMACIEENKERLS
HEX  MARABARZRNHZE
EIRE R
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PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 December 2008, the directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mayer Steel Pipe
Corporation, which was incorporated in the Republic of China and
does not produce financial statements available for public use.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

With a review of financial statements presentation, certain items
in the financial statements were reclassified which would result
in a more appropriate presentation of events or transactions.
Accordingly, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’s presentation.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 2, management has made certain
key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimated uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that may
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, as discussed below:

(i)  Fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, available-for-
sale financial assets) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date. The use
of methodologies, models and assumptions in pricing
and valuing these financial assets and liabilities is
subjective and requires varying degrees of judgement by
management, which may result in significantly different
fair values and results. All significant financial valuation
models are strictly controlled and regularly recalibrated
and vetted.
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40. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

Useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are defined as the period over which they
are expected to be available for use by the Group. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment or
similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and it will derecognise
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives;
and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual lives and therefore
depreciation expense in future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and land
lease prepayments

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a
significant impact on the carrying value of the assets and
could result in additional impairment charge or reversal
of impairment in future periods.
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40. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon evaluation of the recoverability
of the trade receivables and other receivables, where
applicable, at each balance sheet date. The estimates are
based on the ageing of the trade receivables and other
receivables balances, the credit worthiness and the past
collection history of each individual customer, and the
historical write-off experience, net of recoveries. If the
financial condition of the debtors were to deteriorate,
additional impairment allowance may be required.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling and distribution costs. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
reassess the estimations at the balance sheet date.
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40. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  40. €5H{& st & ¥ (&)
(Continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s (b) EEAXNEEESHBREREZ

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and
liabilities, the Group makes assumptions for the effects of
uncertain future events on those assets and liabilities at the
balance sheet date. These estimates involve assumptions
about such items as cash flows and discount rates used.
The Group’s estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and expectations of future events and
are reviewed periodically. In addition to assumptions and
estimations of future events, judgements are also made
during the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets, are stated at cost less
impairment. Judgement is required when determining
whether there is objective evidence that the assets are
impaired. In making this judgement, historical data and
factors such as industry and sector performance and financial
information regarding the investee are taken into account.
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